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Golf Victoria is the parent body for  
golf in Victoria and a member of golf’s 
national body, Golf Australia.

Originally commencing in 1902 as the 
Victorian Golf Association, Golf Victoria was 
formed following an amalgamation with 
Women’s Golf Victoria in November 2010. 
Women’s Golf Victoria (formerly the Victorian 
Ladies Golf Union) commenced in 1906.

Golf Victoria is a company limited by 
guarantee and is administered through an 
elected Board; appointed committees of 
honorary Officials and until November 2018 
supported by a full-time office when that 
support commenced to be provided for Golf 
Victoria by Golf Australia under the One Golf 
services arrangements agreed between them.
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HONORARY LIFE MEMBERS
G. Body

M.K. Fitchett 

J.M. Hobday OAM

R.L. Kirby

J.B. Westacott OAM

PRESIDENT
2011 – 2017 J.M. Hobday OAM

2017 S. Spargo AM

FINANCE DIRECTOR
2011 – 2017 A. C. Nott

2017 P. Nash

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
2010 - 2011 D. J. Greenhill (joint)

2010 - 2011 Ms. B. E. Young (joint)

2011 - 2018 S. P. Brookhouse 

VGA PRESIDENTS
1902-03 T.C. Hope

1903-04 W.J.C. Riddell

1904-05 G.C. Morrison

1905-06 F.M. Douglass

1906-07 W.J.C. Riddell

1907-08 G.C. Morrison 

1908-09 P.J. Russell

1909-10 F.B. Waters

1910-11 F.M. Douglass

1911-12 G.C. Morrison

1912-13 W.J.C. Riddell 

1913-14 F.B. Patterson 

1914-15 F.B. Waters 

1915-21 H.J. Graham 

1921-23 H. Culliton 

1923-30 W.J.C. Riddell 

1930-37 H.G. McRoberts

1938-47 T.E. Doughton

1947-52 C.R. Willan

1952-59 E.P. Prendergast

1959-65 D.S. Martin

1965-70 A.A. Brahe

1970-75 J.R. Lovett

1975-80 C.J. Evans

1980-87 K.L. Alcock

1987-92 D.N.S. Blair

1992-96 R.S.J. Budge

1996-02 J.B. Westacott OAM

2002-07 R.L. Kirby

2007-10 J.M. Hobday OAM

WGV PRESIDENTS
1905-06 Mrs J.K. Merritt (Interim)

1906-12 Mrs L.H. Lindon

1912-19 Mrs J.K. Merritt

1919-20 Mrs E. McLaughlin

1920-21 Miss G. Hay

1922-24 Mrs M.H. Legge

1924-28 Mrs N. Lees

1928-36 Mrs A. Gatehouse

1936-38 Mrs B.J. Bellair

1938-42 Mrs N.Lees

1942-46 Mrs A. Gatehouse

1946-48 Mrs A.J. Douglas

1948-53 Miss M. Macleod

1953-59 Mrs C.L. Evans

1959-70 Mrs R.P. McMeekin

1970-75 Mrs H.A. Anderson

1975-81 Mrs J.S. Bailey

1981-83 Miss B. Cheney M.B.E.

1983-86 Mrs E.H. Griffith

1986-89 Mrs N.W. Teesdale

1989-92 Mrs J. Wakeham

1992-95 Mrs T.A. Stevenson

1995-98 Mrs J. Court

1998-01 Mrs J. Gorrell

2001-04 Mrs J. Hibbins

2004-07 Mrs J. Onto

2007-10 Mrs J. Hoff

Throughout the year Golf Victoria’s staff 
have devoted their energies and passions 
to deliver services and programmes for the 
benefit of golfers and clubs across Victoria.

On behalf of all members, I express our thanks for their dedication 
and hard work in 2018, and in previous years. They are a great 
team and have been very ably led by Simon Brookhouse.

On 1 October 2018, Golf Victoria’s staff (and their peers in South 
Australia, Queensland, Tasmania and the Northern Territory) 
took the momentous step of transferring their employment to 
Golf Australia thereby enabling “One Golf” to commence in all 
Australian golfing jurisdictions other than Western Australia and 
New South Wales.

Our staff’s willingness to commit to a new management structure 
for Australian golf, for which the board of Golf Australia ultimately 
is now responsible, has made it possible to strengthen the overall 
administration of our sport in Australia. None of this would have 
been possible without our staff’s unwavering acceptance and 
belief in the opportunity One Golf presents for achieving not only 
what is best for Golf Victoria’s members but also what is best for 
the game in Australia.

I am sure that our people with their strong collaborative culture 
will play a critical role in enabling a truly unified national golfing 
operation to be achieved in Australia. They understand well the 
importance of having a national focus but being able to act locally 
wherever that is required.

Golf Australia’s essential commitment to Golf Victoria under the 
agreed One Golf arrangements is that Golf Victoria’s members will 
receive from Golf Australia services to the standard and extent 
enjoyed by them before One Golf implementation and a key 
responsibility of the respective boards of Golf Victoria and Golf 
Australia will be to ensure this commitment is satisfied.

While One Golf implementation in 2018 has provided the catalyst 
for much improved golfing administration in Australia, successful 
golfing outcomes in Victoria depend to a very large extent on the 
continuing support Golf Victoria receives from the Government of 
Victoria. 

The State Government’s role is vital for the game’s continuing 
health and growth and we are extremely grateful to the Victorian 
Government for a number of key initiatives it announced in 2018. 

“I am sure that our 
people with their strong 
collaborative culture 
will play a critical role 
in enabling a truly 
unified national golfing 
operation to be achieved 
in Australia.
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• Having in operation more than 110 registered MyGolf centres with 
4,805 participants in 2018, an increase of 12% on 2017.

• Conducting a 5-week MyGolf schools programme involving 14,967 
students from 138 schools.

• Training and utilising an additional 30 MyGolf instructors, 8 MyGolf 
school instructors (non-teachers), 11 MyGolf school instructors 
(teachers) and 6 SwingFit instructors.

• Having more than 2,000 women participate for the first time in 
introductory golfing clinics, more than double the number in 2017.

• Achieving an increase in government funding from $155,000 
to $320,000 for golf development programmes representing an 
increase of 106% on the previous year’s equivalent funding.

• Conducting a state-wide play 9 promotion leading to the Victorian 
Play 9 State Final which saw 235 clubs run 6,355 Golflink recognised 
9-hole competitions during the qualifying period from July to mid 
October, with 10,621 competitors.

On the Victorian golfing front, there were many outstanding 
achievements. 

Our congratulations are extended to Maddison Hinson-Tolchard 
(Gosnells Golf Club, WA) and Andre Lautee (Kingston Heath Golf Club) 
for their fine performances in winning the 2018 women’s and men’s 
Victorian Amateur Championships. 

Commonwealth Golf Club won the 2018 women’s Division 1 Pennant 
final, defeating Huntingdale Golf Club and, in the 2018 men’s Division 
1 Pennant final, The Metropolitan Golf Club defeated Kingston Heath 
Golf Club. 

At the Australian Interstate Teams Matches held at The Grange Golf 
Club and Glenelg Golf Club in South Australia in 2018, the men’s 
State team was victorious in an exciting final match repeating their 
2017 win in Perth. 

In concluding this report, I thank our wonderful clubs who have hosted 
Golf Victoria events in 2018. Our programme of events provides a 
terrific opportunity for so many Victorian and interstate golfers, 
and the generosity of the clubs is sincerely appreciated. I must also 
thank volunteers who have helped Golf Victoria’s staff on so many 
fronts during the year. Our volunteers work tirelessly in assisting Golf 
Victoria carry out its golfing activities and we appreciate all that they 
do for Victorian golf. Put simply, we could not operate without them.

I also take the opportunity of thanking my fellow members of the 
Golf Victoria board for their support and the time they devote to the 
governance of Victorian golf.

STEPHEN SPARGO AM

President

GOLF VICTORIA
President’s Report 

MEMBERSHIP
Participation 

District Associations & Affiliated Clubs 

The small decline in membership numbers occurred throughout Victorian golf  
– Member Clubs, Victorian Golf League and country clubs.

Total male membership numbers for 2018 was 84,799  
representing a decrease of 1,648 (1.9%) over the previous year.  

Total female membership numbers declined by 543 in  
2018 to 22,436 players.  

As of 2018, there were 416 affiliated golf clubs within Victoria 
including 49 restricted members of the Victorian Golf League 
(social clubs) and 271 country clubs. Corryong and Walwa Golf 
Clubs went into recess during 2018.

In total, 14 of the 15 District Associations are now amalgamated 
entities representing both women’s and men’s golf in country 
Victoria.

84,799 
MALE 
MEMBERSHIP

416

22,436 
FEMALE 
MEMBERSHIP

AFFILIATED 
GOLF CLUBS 
within VIC

THESE INCLUDED:

• An additional financial contribution of $5.3 million towards the 
Australian Golf Centre project being developed at Sandringham golf 
course, bringing to $15.3 million the State’s commitment to enabling 
Golf Australia’s, PGA’s and ALPG’s staff based in Victoria to work 
together from the same office.

• A commitment of $2.0 million to assist Victorian golf clubs with 
“shovel ready” projects.

• A commitment over 4 years of $12.0 million for the Vic Open at the 
13th Beach golf courses.

The further commitment by the Victorian Government for the Vic 
Open will underpin its continuing growth and importance, something 
which the Government recognises, for the event brings together 
women and men on equal terms on the same courses which is 
unique in golfing circles globally.

The Vic Open in 2018 was the last year Oates was our naming rights 
sponsor. Oates has played a vital role in helping Golf Victoria to 
develop the event. 

We thank Oates for its past assistance and for its support in 2018 
along with TAC and our other event sponsors in 2018, as well as the 
City of Greater Geelong and 13th Beach Golf Links for their invaluable 
continuing assistance in the conduct of the Vic Open.

The 2018 Vic Open women’s and men’s titles were taken out 
respectively by Minjee Lee and Simon Hawkes.

During 2018 a focus for Golf Victoria has been club health. 

Through the efforts of a number of people (including Club Facilities 
and Support Officer, John Stamp), a more robust system has been 
developed by Golf Victoria for assessing the financial performance 
of clubs permitting key ratio measurements, relevant to the golfing 
industry, to be adopted allowing for club financial performance 
comparisons to be undertaken. These efforts supplement those of 
Golf Victoria’s regional development officers who have continued 
in 2018 to provide valuable assistance to clubs in the areas of golf 
development and governance.

The 2018 year has also seen a significant number of development 
and participation initiatives undertaken in Victoria encouraging more 
people to play golf, and these included:

“The 2018 Vic Open 
women’s and men’s 
titles were taken out 
respectively by Minjee 
Lee and Simon Hawkes.
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In Memoriam

MEMBERSHIP
In Memoriam

PETER THOMSON | 1929 - 2018

Australian golfing great Peter 
Thomson AO CBE passed away 
in June 2018. Born on 23 August 
1929, he was two months short of 
his 89th birthday and is survived 
by his wife Mary, son Andrew and 
daughters Deirdre Baker, Pam 
Prendergast and Fiona Stanway.

The first Australian to win the Open, Peter 
went on to secure the title five times between 
1954 and 1965, a record equalled in the 20th 
and 21st Centuries only by American Tom 
Watson. Thomson had a stellar playing career 
that accrued 84 professional wins world-
wide including 5 Open Championships.

On the American senior circuit he won nine 
times in 1985, setting a record that may 
never be broken. As well as a great player 
he was an outstanding contributor to the 
game, serving as president of the Australian 
PGA for 32 years, designing and building 
courses in Australia and around the world, 
helping establish the Asian Tour and working 
behind the scenes for the Odyssey House 
drug rehabilitation organisation where he 
was chairman for five years. He also wrote for 
newspapers and magazines for more than 60 
years and was patron of the Australian Golf 
Writers Association.

In 1979 he was made a Commander of 
the Order of the British Empire (CBE) for 
his service to golf and in 2001 became an 
Officer of the Order of Australia (AO) for his 
contributions as a player and administrator 
and for community service. 

He was Captain of the only victorious 
International Presidents Cup Team in 1998, 
PGA of Australia President from 1962 to 
1994, inducted into the World Golf Hall of 
Fame in 1988 and Australia Sport Hall of 
Fame in 1985. He was made a Life Member 
of the Australian PGA in 1995, was elevated 
to Australian PGA Immortal in 2016 and was 
inducted into the Victorian Golf Industry Hall 
of Fame in 2011.

JARROD LYLE 

Victorian professional Jarrod Lyle passed 
away in August 2018 after an extended battle 
with leukemia. He was aged 36 and is survived 
by his wife Briony, and daughters Lusi, 6, and 
Jemma, 2.

Lyle was born in Shepparton and started in golf at age six when he 
caddied for his father. He enjoyed a great amateur career, winning 
both the Victorian Country Championship and Lake Macquarie 
Amateur in 2003 and 2004 and represented Victoria in the men’s 
State team from 2002 to 2004. He was also runner-up in the Men’s 
Australian Amateur Championship in 2004.  

Moving to Melbourne to pursue his golf development, the affable 
Lyle joined Commonwealth Golf Club in Oakleigh South, winning four 
club championships and representing the club in Golf Victoria’s 
metropolitan clubs pennant competition from the age of 16 until 
turning professional in 2004.

As a professional, he won twice on the Nationwide Tour in 2008. Lyle 
also played a number of seasons on the US PGA Tour, first earning 
his card in 2007. His best finish on the US Tour was a tie for 4th 
place in the 2012 Northern Trust Open.

In addition to his golf career, Lyle was renowned for his charismatic 
personality and fierce determination in his ongoing fight with cancer 
having been first diagnosed with acute myeloid leukemia at age 
17, being confined to his bed for nine months while undergoing 
chemotherapy treatments at Melbourne’s Royal Children’s Hospital. 
He recovered twice from the illness to return to his golf pursuits 
(having had a recurrence of the disease in March 2012). He also 
became a leading advocate for Challenge, a charity which supports 
children diagnosed with cancer.

IAN STANLEY 

In late July, Australian golf lost of one of its 
greatest characters in Ian Stanley. A member 
at Huntingdale Golf Club, the Victorian 
professional was a winner of 19 events on the 
PGA Tour of Australasia, one on the European 
Tour and three on the Senior European Tour 
including the 2001 Senior Open. He sadly 
passed away after a long battle with cancer 
at age 69.

Ian joined the PGA of Australia in 1971 and was a prolific tournament 
winner in Australasia from the mid 1970s through to the early 
1990s. Ian spent his professional years playing on the PGA Tour of 
Australasia and European Tour. 

After turning 50 Ian joined the European Seniors Tour where he won 
three times including the Senior Open in 2001 and topped the Order 
of Merit in the same year. He was a director of the Tee Up for Kids 
organisation which raises money for under-privileged children in 
Victoria. He was an integral part of the Jack Newton Trust and was a 
Board Member of the PGA Tour Australasia during the 1980’s.

Ian was inducted into the Victorian Golf Industry Hall of Fame in 
2012 and is survived by his wife Pam, three children and seven 
grandchildren.

JOHN DAVIS 

John Davis passed away in February 2018 
aged 82 years. A former club professional 
at the Croydon (now Yering Meadows) and 
Kingswood (now Peninsula-Kingswood) Golf 
Clubs and a Professional Golf Association 
(PGA) member since 1954, John was a 
wonderful player, notably winning the 
Victorian Open in 1974. 

He was first named coach of the Victorian Men’s State Amateur Team 
in 1986 and served in this role until 1989. He was later the Victorian 
Golf Association Director of Coaching for 13 years undertaking a 
variety of coaching duties including coordinating training sessions 
for Victorian Men’s and Boys’ Teams as well as coaching at junior 
golf camps and with development squads.

Awarded PGA member of the year in 2003, John also became a Life 
Member of the Australian PGA in 2004. John’s services to Victorian 
golf were recognised in 2012 with his induction into the Victorian 
Golf Hall of Fame for services to the sport. 
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MEMBERSHIP
2018 Inclusion Initiative Award

State Rules Referees | 25 Year Recognition

MEMBERSHIP
2018 Inclusion Initiative Award 

A new Golf Victoria award was introduced at the 
Victorian Golf Industry Awards Night held at The Arts 
Centre Melbourne on Friday 10 August designed to 
recognise clubs, individuals or organisations who 
have taken significant steps to attract, welcome 
and include people from cultural and diverse 
backgrounds and people with a disability.

In 2018, Golf Victoria also recognised the following 
four State Level Rules Referees who had each 
provided 25 years’ service to golf:

BRENDAN GREEN 
Sandringham Golf Links

Brendan, a member of the 
PGA for 12 years, is a fully 
qualified ‘PGA All Abilities 
Golf Coach’ and has been 
Head Professional at 
Sandringham Golf Course  
for the last six years. 
Two years ago Brendan came to the 
realisation that children with intellectual 
difficulties were being excluded from school 
sporting activities due to their inability to 
concentrate for the required period of time. 
Since the beginning of 2017 he has been 
conducting MyGolf classes specifically 
designed for children with social, intellectual 
and physical difficulties including those with 
severe anxiety, autism, schizophrenia, ADD, 
ADHD, children with difficult upbringings 
and missing limbs.

Brendan has helped these children to learn 
the game of golf while providing a suitable 
environment for them to form friendships 

with other children with similar difficulties. 
Integral to Brendan’s success is regular 
contact with parents of his students, 
ensuring they are informed of their children’s 
golfing progress and personal welfare.

PAKENHAM GOLF CLUB

Over the past 18 months 
Pakenham Golf Club (PGC) 
has focused on changing 
the culture of the club, how 
the region sees golf, and has 
considered the club’s vision 
of being more inclusive of 
everyone in the immediate  
and wider community.

This process began with Haydn Thompson and 
Scott Laycock achieving their PGA All Abilities 
Coaching Accreditation. Having engaged 
with Officer Specialist School to deliver golf 
coaching to their students and running a golf 
coaching programme for the Special Olympics, 
PGC is now delivering on long term planning.

These teachings tie in with new facilities 
due for completion mid-2019, working with 
local government on a complex which offers 
universal design including a one of a kind All 
Abilities Playground, offering complete access 
for all children regardless of ability.

With a third PGA Professional at PGC currently 
completing the PGA All Abilities programme, 
PGC and the entire region is benefiting with 
all three coaches willing to help, guide and 
support clubs that may or may not have a 
PGA Professional on-site. They can deliver 
programmes or educate committees and 
management of other clubs just how important 
these programmes are for their long-term 
success.

PGC’s Bar & Catering Manager Kelly O’Shea is 
a qualified disability carer and was the starting 
point for PGC’s disability engagement with the 
community, offering and delivering functions 
to special needs children who were turning 18 
and looking to have a party. These functions 
have put Pakenham Golf Club on the map as 
an all-inclusive club.

These aspects set a clear and definitive vision 
for a Golf Club that can cater for more than 

just golf, a venue the entire community can 
enjoy. It future proofs the entire facility and 
along the way engages with some of the most 
inspiring people who teach us all to embrace 
life no matter what. All members support the 
vision for Pakenham Golf Club and are proud 
of what the club is achieving.

RICH RIVER GOLF CLUB

Rich River Golf Club (RRGC) 
conducts monthly inclusive/
adaptive coaching sessions 
run by All Abilities Coach 
and Club Professional, Steve 
Loader. RRGC is a registered 
provider with Empower 
Golf Australia (EGA) as a 
dedicated disability hub. 

This programme provides players access 
to a Paragolfer, enabling visiting and local 
wheelchair bound golfers, the opportunity 
to visit their facility, one of the first regional 
hubs set up with EGA.

The recent major clubhouse renovation saw 
full disability access facilities installed in 
rest rooms.

This initiative has allowed a pathway for 
members such as Peter Hyden. Peter plays 
golf and has coaching with the assistance 
of a Paragolfer, utilising the club’s all 
access facilities.

Loader, through relationships built from the 
club’s inclusive program, is an ambassador 
for a local Opening Doors Project which 
helps build assisted housing for individuals 
with disability. The Opening Doors Project 
provides a mix of accommodation catering 
for individuals requiring assistance 24 
hours a day or for those able to use assistive 
technology to live a more independent life.

The nominees demonstrated initiative in removing barriers towards participation, developed pathways 
for sustainable participation and provided support through a whole of club approach.

THE 2018 NOMINEES WERE:

THE WINNER

2018 Inclusion Award Winner 

PAKENHAM GOLF CLUB

BILL CASSIDY 

CHRIS COOPER 

MURRAY CROPLEY

BRIAN LASKY

In 1993 the Victorian Golf Association (VGA) conducted its first of many State Level Referees, 
rules courses. The courses were introduced to upskill interested men and women and create 
a group of volunteers to act as referees at the increasing number of events conducted by the 
VGA and Women’s Golf Victoria. Many of these referees went on to officiate at national events.

As part of the Victorian Golf Industry Awards Night, the significant contribution to Victorian 
golf of the forementioned referees was formally recognised.
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“

ACHIEVEMENTS
2018 Victorian Golf Hall of Fame

ACHIEVEMENTS
2018 Victorian Golf Hall of Fame 

The Victorian Golf Hall of Fame is an initiative 
undertaken by Golf Victoria, the PGA, Golf 
Management Victoria and the Victorian Golf Course 
Superintendents Association.

TOURNAMENT PLAY/PROMOTION 

GOLF COACHING/TRAINING

GOLF MEDIA/HISTORY

GOLF ADMINISTRATION/CLUB MANAGEMENT 

GOLF COURSE DEVELOPMENT/MAINTENANCE

VOLUNTEER

Introduced in 2011 and modeled on The Sport Australia Hall of Fame, the criteria are intentionally broad to 
recognise outstanding individuals that have a made a contribution to Victorian golf in any of the following areas:

2018 INDUCTEES INTO THE 
VICTORIAN GOLF HALL OF FAME:
LOUISE BRIERS

Louise Briers (nee Hawking) was born in 
Rutherglen in 1956 and grew up across 
the road from the Rutherglen Golf Club. 
As a 19-year-old in 1975, Briers joined 
Commonwealth Golf Club and quickly made 
an impact by winning the first of her seven 
Commonwealth Women’s Club Championships 
in 1975. In 1976 Briers commenced a Pennant 
career spanning 42 years which yielded five 
Pennant flags.

At State Level, Briers won the Victorian Women’s Amateur Championship 
3-times, Victorian Women’s Foursomes Championship 5-times, 
Women’s Champion of Champions 5-times, the Riversdale Cup 5-times 
and was a Victorian State Team Member from 1976-1980 and 1982-1993.

Briers won the Australian Women’s Amateur at Royal Melbourne in 
1991 after a runner-up finish in 1978, won the Australian Women’s 
Foursomes Championships 4-times and represented Australia at the 
Queen Sirikit Cup (1983, 1985, 1987, 1989, 1991), the Espitiro Santo 
Trophy (1984, 1986, 1988, 1990), the team to Great Britain (1978, 
1984), the Commonwealth Tournament (1983, 1987, 1991) and the 
Tasman Cup (1985, 1987, 1989).

On the International scene Briers was runner up in both the British 
Women’s Amateur and the European Women’s Amateur in France in 
1986. Louise was made a Life Member of Commonwealth Golf Club in 
1985 at the age of 30.

TOM CROW

Born in 1931 in Camberwell, Tom first 
distinguished himself as a cricketer, 
particularly as a fast left arm bowler, before 
golf became his sport of choice. He began as 
a left-handed golfer before switching to right-
handed as good left-handed golf clubs were 
hard to find.

In a glittering amateur career Crow won more than 20 Club 
Championships at Kingston Heath, Royal Melbourne and Royal Sydney, 
was the only amateur to win the Victorian Close Championship at Kew 
in 1953 and won the 1956 Victorian Amateur Championship at Royal 
Melbourne, where his 63 on the West Course in qualifying lowered the 
course record by four strokes.

Crow also won the 1961 Australian Amateur at Royal Melbourne, where 
he defeated fellow Victorian Golf Hall of Fame Member Eric Routley 
3 and 2 in the final. This was followed by victories in the Riversdale 
Cup in 1961 and 1962. Interestingly Tom’s Riversdale Cup victories 
followed his brother Peter’s victory in 1956. The two men remain the 
only brothers to win the title. Crow also won the Victorian Amateur 
Foursomes Championship in 1956 with Barry West, and in 1962 with 
Doug Bachli.

To top all of this off Crow also represented Australia in the Eisenhower 
Cup in 1962 in Japan and 1964 in Italy. Crow was also Peter Thomson’s 
manager for a period of seven years that included three Open 
Championships and many sponsorship deals.

As amazing as Crow’s playing career was, he will probably be best 
known and remembered as a golf club designer and innovator. Crow 
started out working for club maker East Brothers which later became 
PGF. He had design input into the Little Slammer which was very popular 
in Australia and a concept he would develop further with great success!

In 1973 Crow moved with his family to California and founded the Cobra 
Club company with an investment of $60,000. In 1975, Cobra released 
the famous Baffler club which was the making of the Cobra brand as it 
got the tick of approval from tour stars such as Gene Littler.

Throughout the 80’s and 90’s Cobra continued to innovate with golf 
club design including the 46-inch shaft in the Long Tom, the King Cobra 
range designed for ladies and seniors and revolutionised the graphite 
shaft manufacturing process.

In 1991 Greg Norman and Hale Irwin signed endorsement deals with 
Cobra. Norman invested in Cobra and in 1993 the company was publicly 
listed. Cobra continued to have huge success with oversized clubs that 
were designed for the club golfer with slower swing speeds. In addition 
Crow, along with short game guru Phil Rodgers designed the Trusty 
Rusty line of wedges.

Cobra was purchased by American Brands in 1996 and subsequently 
sold to Puma in 2010.

Crow retired more than 15 years ago but his legacy lives on. In 2003, the 
PGA of America acknowledged Crow’s achievements by bestowing him 
with the Ernie Sabayrac Award for life contribution to the golf industry. 
Crow now resides in the USA.

BRENDAN MOLONEY

Moloney has worked on newspapers in 
Zimbabwe, Papua New Guinea and Australia 
and reported on and played golf in America, 
Britain, Japan, China, New Zealand, Sri Lanka, 
Vietnam, Fiji, Thailand and India.

Moloney followed his father into journalism in 1968, training on the 
old ‘Sun News Pictorial’ in Melbourne. From there he worked on the 
‘Rhodesia Herald’ (now Zimbabwe) as a sub-editor, the Papua New 
Guinea ‘Post-Courier’ as sports editor and the Melbourne ‘Age’ where 
he was chief golf writer.

In 1988, while chief golf writer at ‘The Age’ he played Augusta National, 
the day after Sandy Lyle won the US Masters. Moloney left ‘The Age’ 
after 16 years in 1993 and since then has contributed to newspapers 
and magazines and been the media manager for golf tournaments in 
Australia, Hong Kong, Indonesia and New Zealand. He has also served 
as a press officer for both the Australian Golf Union (Golf Australia) and 
the PGA Tour.

He has written or co-written a dozen books on golf, has won 13 national 
awards from the Australian Golf Writers Association, and in 1987 was 
named Golf Writer of the Year by the Victorian PGA. He served on the 
executive of the Australian Golf Writers Association for 31 years from 
1986, was president from 2008 to 2017, and in 2008 was awarded Life 
Membership of the AGWA. In 2017 Moloney received a plaque from the 
Australian PGA Tour for his outstanding contribution to golf.

Moloney is currently a columnist for ‘Golf Australia’ magazine and is a 
member of the East Malvern Golf Club.

In 1973 Crow moved with 
his family to California 
and founded the Cobra 
Club company with an 
investment of $60,000
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GOLF VICTORIA
Administration

ACHIEVEMENTS
2018 Victorian Golf Hall of Fame

COLIN PHILLIPS OAM

Phillips was appointed to the position of 
Assistant Manager at The Metropolitan Golf 
Club in 1962. This appointment was part of an 
initiative between The Metropolitan Golf Club 
and The Royal Melbourne Golf Club whereby 
young men were given the opportunity to train 
in all facets of club administration.

Phillips then moved to the UK where he spent four and half years at 
the West Kent Golf Club as Secretary/Manager. During this time he 
provided assistance to the Kent Golf Union.

He returned to Australia in 1975 to assume the position of Secretary of 
the Victorian Golf Association before securing the position of Secretary 
of the Australian Golf Union. This was the first full-time position after 
part-time positions were held by fellow Victorian Golf Hall of Fame 
Members Sloan Morpeth, Bill Richardson and others.

Phillips remained Secretary of the AGU, now known as Golf Australia, 
until 2006 and during this tenure he achieved the following:

Establishment of the AGU as a full time 
business operation

Expansion of the Australian Open

Golf development programmes, particularly for 
juniors and promising young amateurs

Building and enhancing our international 
recognition

Establishment of Moonah Links as the home 
of the AGU

Establishment of Golflink and the Australian 
Handicapping System

Establishment of an Environmental Strategy 
for Australian Golf Courses

Phillips has been a member of The Metropolitan Golf Club since 1975 
and has served on its Committee and acted as Greens Convener for 
many years. In addition, Phillips is a member of The Royal and Ancient 
Golf Club of St Andrews, honorary member of Kingston Heath and West 
Kent Golf Clubs, Sorrento, Moonah Links and Frankston Golf Clubs.

Phillips was also the Honorary Secretary of the Asia–Pacific Golf 
Confederation, Director of Asia-Pacific for The Royal and Ancient Golf 
Club of St. Andrews, Chairman of the Australian Open Championship 

from 1975-2005, and was the first Australian to serve on Rules 
Committees for The Open Championship, US Open and The Masters 
Tournament.

Phillips also sat on committees to establish the World Golf Ranking 
system, the Alfred Dunhill Cup, the Johnny Walker World Championship 
and the Confederation of Australian Sport.

Phillips was awarded an OAM in 1996 for his contribution to the golfing 
industry through the Australian Golf Union.

JOHN WESTACOTT OAM

John was elected to the Victorian Golf 
Association (VGA) Council in 1979 and retired 
23 years later in 2002. He was VGA President 
for six years following six years as Vice 
President. He is a Life Member of Golf Victoria.

Whilst on the VGA Council, he served as Chairman of a number 
of different committees, including the Match and the Selection 
Committees. He also sat on the Junior, Rules and Amateur Status, 
Handicap and Course Rating and Victorian Open Committees.

Westacott was President of the Australian Golf Union (AGU) and was 
a member of the AGU Executive Committee. He was an Australian 
National Selector for 14 years which included managing the Australian 
Men’s Amateur Golf Team to the Eisenhower Trophy on three occasions. 
He managed the Victorian Men’s State Team from 1986 to 1988 and 
again in 1993.

Westacott was also a National Referee and conducted rules education 
sessions at clubs across Victoria and officiated at the Men’s Australian 
and Victorian Opens over a 25 year stretch. 

He sat on each of the AGU Rules Committee and AGU Open Committee 
for six years.

Locally, John has been a member of Victoria Golf Club for 63 years 
and in that time has served as Captain for five years, President for 
five years. Life membership of Victoria Golf Club was conferred on 
John in 1995.

John was awarded an OAM in 2014 for service to golf.

LIAISON
Golf Victoria’s work cannot be fully effective 
without continued co-operation and liaison 
with a range of allied organisations.  Our 
thanks are extended to the following:

Golf Australia

Department of Health and Human Services 

	 - Sport and Industry Development;

	 - Community Sport and Recreation 	
		  Programs

Community Clubs Victoria

State Directors of Sport

Vicsport

VicHealth

Golf Management Australia  
(Victorian Division)

Victorian Institute of Sport

Victorian Golf Course Superintendents 
Association

Veteran Golfers Association

State Golf Associations

School Sport Victoria

Professional Golfers Association of 
Australia

Australian Ladies Professional Golf

Victorian Employers’ Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry

Heart Foundation

WEBSITE
Traffic to www.golfvic.org.au was strong 
in 2018 with 543,973 sessions, 1,604,155 
page views and 161,654 users. The Golf 
Victoria website continued to feature 
reports, articles and scores from all State 
level events played within Victoria as well 
as serve as a major communication source 
for Victorian Clubs, districts and golfers on 
a range of golf specific matters.

As part of the transition to ‘One Golf’, the 
Golf Victoria website was migrated across 
to the Golf Australia domain (golf.org.au) 
with a subsite created at www.golf.org.au/
victoria.  The Golf Australia website is set 
to be rebuilt towards the end of 2019. 

In its third year, the Vic Open website 
hosted 66,672 users from all around the 
globe tuning in to follow the tournament 
coverage at www.vicopengolf.com, resulting 
in 148,489 sessions and 1,159,495 page 
views.

GENERAL MEETINGS
The Annual General Meeting in relation to 
the year ending 31 December 2017 was 
conducted at the Riversdale Golf Club on 
Monday 28 May 2018 with attendance from 
Member Clubs, District Golf Associations 
and the Victorian Golf League.  Golf Victoria 
extends its thanks to Riversdale Golf Club 
for its support in hosting the seventh 
Annual Meeting of Golf Victoria.

GOLF VICTORIA STAFF
27 full-time staff; 6 part-time staff and 
3 contracted roles were employed by 
Golf Victoria for most of 2018, working 
from the Cheltenham premises. The 
office, which opens on weekdays during 
business hours, coordinates the events 
and business of the organisation and 
deals with club, District, League and public 
enquiries on all aspects of golf. Almost 
all of the staff have transferred their 
employment to Golf Australia under the 
One Golf services arrangements agreed 
between Golf Victoria and Golf Australia in 
October 2018.

PODCAST 
In conjunction with radio station 1116 SEN, 
Golf Australia and a number of State bodies, 
including Golf Victoria continued with a golf 
specific podcast in 2018 titled “Inside The 
Ropes”. Regular hosts were Andy Maher and 
Mark Hayes with semi-regular guests Mike 
Clayton, Jo Charlton, Alison Whitaker and 
Martin Blake.

VIDEO
Ten Golf Victoria TV (GVTV) videos were 
published in 2018 across GV’s digital 
platforms. In addition, over 50 videos 
from the 2018 Oates Vic Open were 
produced including promotional videos, 
feature interviews, highlights and press 
conferences. 

FINANCE
Golf Victoria recorded a surplus of 
$1,357,871 for 2018 compared with a 
surplus of $110,465 in 2017. 

The Detailed Statement of Income and 
Expenditure on page 47 of this report 
shows the areas of movement from 2017  
to 2018. 

BOARD AND SUB-COMMITTEES
The Golf Victoria Board met on six 
occasions during 2018 with a focus on 
policy and development priorities. The 
Board was supported by the committees 
listed on page 3 which handled operational 
matters delegated to them by the Board 
and provided input into Golf Victoria policy 
and planning.

SOCIAL MEDIA
In 2018, Golf Victoria continued to improve 
its presence on social media, growing 
audiences on all Golf Victoria platforms 
(Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Snapchat 
and YouTube).

In addition to posting regular and engaging 
organic content, Golf Victoria also invested 
in a paid digital strategy to promote 
programmes, services and events to a range 
of targeted audiences. Strong focuses on 
social media were Victorian championships 
and events (incl. the Oates Vic Open), 
MyGolf, Swing Fit, ‘Inside The Ropes’ 
podcast, Play9 and Golf Month.

MAGAZINE
2018 represented the 59th year for the 
publication of the Golf Victoria Magazine 
as a major communications platform for 
the organisation.  The magazine remains 
a high quality service to record Victorian 
golf events and history and to air issues of 
importance to the health of the game and 
clubs.

Six full colour editions were published 
in 2018. Golf Victoria extends its thanks 
to Karen & Mark Harding (Editors), Ray 
Kelsall (Advertising) and the team of 
skilled journalists and photographers who 
contributed to its ongoing success and 
service to the Victorian Golf community.
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- The Dallas Brooks Mixed Foursomes Trophy 
at Metropolitan saw Yarra Yarra duo Dallas 
and Phillip Wickenden take out the 2018 title. 
The pair defeated Kathy and Mike Smith from 
Woodlands on the 19th hole in the final. 

- Huntingdale’s Piper Stubbs won the 2018 
Victorian Women’s Par 3 Championship at 
Kyabram Parkland with a two-round total of 
118, finishing four strokes clear of Cobram-
Barooga’s Steffanie Vogel. 

The opening two rounds of the Championships 
were played on both the Creek and Beach 
courses with the final two rounds then played 
concurrently on the Beach course over the 
weekend of February 9 and 10. The fields 
were organised in alternate groups of men and 
women players for all four days.

The Men’s Championship was won by 
Tasmanian professional Simon Hawkes with 
a four-round total of 274 (15-under-par) 
following a play-off against rookie New South 
Wales professional, Harrison Endycott.

In the 58th year of staging the Men’s Victorian 
Open, Hawkes became the 47th player to have 
won the title and joins past winners including 

Hinson-Tolchard is one of the youngest-ever 
winners of the 124-year-old championship, 
her victory embellishing the Australian girls’ 
title she won at Royal Perth earlier in the 
year. In an all-Western Australian women’s 
final, the Gosnells member peeled off five 
consecutive birdies from the sixth to the 
tenth holes on the second 18 of the 36-hole 
final to defeat 17-year-old Kirsten Rudgeley 
five and four.

Lautee, 19, the reigning club champion at 
Kingston Heath, defeated VIS scholarship-
holder and Victorian State Team player Kyle 
Michel (Shepparton) two and one in the 
men’s final. 

All match play rounds of the Men’s and 
Women’s Victorian Amateur Championships 

- First played in 2005, the Victorian Mid-
Amateur for players aged 30 and over 
continued in 2018 with Cranbourne and The 
National (Long Island site) hosting rounds 
of the 36-hole Championship. Mark Boulton 
of Phillip Island posted a two-round total of 
147 to ultimately win the men’s title after a 
birdie at the first hole of a four-man sudden-
death play-off. The women’s section saw Sue 
Wooster of The National win for the fourth year 
in a row with a two-round total of 152.

MAJOR EVENTS
Trailing Victorian State player David 
Micheluzzi by three strokes going into the 
final round, 18-year-old Fan stormed home 
with eight afternoon birdies to win by a 
solitary stroke on a 72-hole total of seven-
under 283 with the 22-year-old Micheluzzi 
on 284 and runner-up for a second 
successive year. 

The Women’s Championship also became a 
final round battle between 15-year-old Yoon 
and Hinson-Tolchard. The West Australian 
teenager closed with a four-under 69 for 
a 72-hole total of 292 only to see Yoon 
go past with a stellar 66, including eight 
birdies to finish at three-under 291. The 

2018 Victorian Amateur Champions:  
 Maddison Hinson-Tolchard  
& Andre Lautee

Peter Thomson, Gary Player, Bruce Devlin, Guy 
Wolstenholme, Rodger Davis, Bob Shearer, 
Stewart Ginn, Ian Stanley, Mike Clayton, Greg 
Norman and Richard Green.

The Women’s Championship was won by 
Australian star, Minjee Lee with a 13-under-par 
total of 279. The 2018 title was Lee’s second 
Victorian Open victory having previously won 
as an amateur in 2014. The West Australian 
returned rounds of 67, 70, 67 and 72. 

With her victory, Lee also became the only 
woman to have won multiple titles since the 
Women’s Vic Open was first played in 1988.

were played at Huntingdale Golf Club 
culminating with the finals.

The stroke qualifying rounds of the 
Men’s and Women’s Victorian Amateur 
Championships were again incorporated 
within the Port Phillip Amateur Championship 
played over 72-holes at Kingston Heath and 
Commonwealth Golf Clubs from Thursday 
6 December to Saturday 8 December. The 
leading 32 men and leading 16 women 
progressed to the respective match play 
rounds of the Men’s and Women’s Victorian 
Amateur titles. Christopher Fan from 
Avondale Golf Club won the Men’s Port Phillip 
Amateur while Korean Min A Yoon took out 
the Women’s Port Phillip Amateur following 
the final 36-holes played at Commonwealth 
Golf Club on Saturday 8 December. 

-  The 2018 Victorian Men’s Par 3 Championship 
was taken out by Darren Makin from Gardiners 
Run. Makin returned rounds of 60, 54 and 56 
for a total of 170 and a one-stroke victory over 
clubmate Jake Fullerton and David Walker 
from The Heritage.

- The Victorian Men’s and Women’s Senior 
Amateur Championships were played 
concurrently in the City of Greater Sheppaton 
at the Shepparton and Hill Top Golf Clubs. 
Rossdale’s Geoffrey Charnley and Kim Burke 
from Shelley Beach in New South Wales won 
the respective Men’s and Women’s titles from 
runners-up Doug Francis from Metropolitan 
and Keysborough’s Sandra Collingwood. 

- First played in 1997, the Victorian Four-
Ball Championship again attracted strong 
participation via 22 qualifying rounds played 
at metropolitan and country venues across the 
State with 942 pairs competing. 

100 men’s, women’s and mixed pairs qualified 
for the final which was played at The National 
and Sorrento Golf Clubs. Northern’s Dean and 
Blake Anderson, Ellis Tickell from Peninsula-
Kingswood and Victoria’s Jane Rawlinson and 
Coleraine’s Maree and Noel Fitzgerald  were 
victorious in the respective Men’s, Women’s 
and Mixed sections. 

2018 Championship saw the starting field of 
168 players come from 88 different clubs, 
including 55 from interstate or overseas. 

During January, the Men’s and Women’s 
Australian Amateur Championships were 
staged in Perth at the Lake Karrinyup Country 
Club and the Wanneroo Golf Club. 

The 36-hole finals at Lake Karrinyup saw 
Victoria’s David Micheluzzi go down in the 
Men’s Championship to Keita Nakajima 
from Japan four and three while Suzuka 
Yamaguchi from Japan won the Women’s 
Championship by defeating Korean A Yean 
Cho six and five.

COMPETITIONSCOMPETITIONS

MEN’S & WOMEN’S VICTORIAN OPENS 

Following ongoing and increased support from the State Government, the City of Greater 
Geelong and Oates Cleaning Products, the 2018 Oates Men’s and Women’s Victorian Opens 
were simultaneously played over 72-holes at the 13th Beach Golf Links from Thursday 7 to 
Sunday 10 February 2018. The prize money was identical with $650,000 on offer for each 
respective title.

MAJOR EVENTS

West Australian Maddison Hinson-Tolchard and Andre Lautee from Kingston Heath won, 
respectively the 2018 Women’s and Men’s Victorian Amateur Championships in their 36-hole 
finals played at Huntingdale Golf Club on Wednesday 12 December.

Simon Hawkes & Minjee Lee with  
Sports Minister The Hon John Eren MP

2018 Men’s Australian Amateur  
Runner Up: David Micheluzzi

2018 Dallas Brooks Mixed Foursomes 
Trophy: Dallas and Phillip Wickenden

2018 Victorian Women’s Par 3 Champion: 
Piper Stubbs  

FURTHER COMPETITION HIGHLIGHTS 2018
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COMPETITIONSCOMPETITIONS

2018 Susie Tolhurst Trophy Winner 
Jessica Pickwick 

2018 Australian Senior Men’s Amateur 
Champion: Gordon Claney 

2018 Victorian Senior Men’s Amateur 
Champion: Geoff Charnley

2018 Australian Senior Women’s Amateur 
Champion : Sue Wooster

2018 Ivo Whitton Trophy Winner 
Kyle Michel  

2018 Men’s Country Week Shield Winners: 
Goulburn Murray  

2018 Women’s Country Teams Division 1 
Winners: North Eastern  

2018 GV Pennant Colts Division 1 Winners: 
Commonwealth  

2018 GV Pennant Men’s Division 1 Winners: 
Metropolitan

FURTHER COMPETITION 
HIGHLIGHTS 2018

- The 2018 Ivo Whitton Trophy was won by 

Kyle Michel from Shepparton for the fourth 

successive year with an adjusted stroke average 

of 69.39 from the 21 rounds that contributed to 

his final average.

- The 2018 Susie Tolhurst Trophy was won by 
Jessica Pickwick from Kilmore who recorded 
an adjusted stroke average of 71.00 from her 
allocated 19 rounds. 

Within national level senior men’s events, 
Kingston Heath’s Gordon Claney won the 
2018 Australian Men’s Senior Amateur 
Championship played at Spring Valley Golf 
Club. The Victorian Senior Men’s team of Geoff 
Charnley, John Kelly, Ian McCleary and Greg 
Rhodes were joint winners with New South 
Wales in the Interstate team’s competition 
played in conjunction with the 2018 Australian 
Men’s Senior Amateur Championship.

The Victorian Women’s Senior Order of Merit 
was introduced in 2016 and has grown to 
consist of 27 events in 2018 involving 238 
unique competitors. Rossdale’s Geoff Charnley 

COUNTRY GOLF
- The Men’s Victorian Country Championship 
was played at the Rosebud Country Club on 
the last weekend in February in conjunction 
with the Boys Junior Country Regions event. 
Matthew Lever from The National won both 
the Victorian Men’s and Junior Country 
Championship with a two-round total of 148 
while Caleb Perry from Warrnambool won the 
Colts Championship with a total of 152. 

- The Men’s and Women’s Country Week Teams 
Matches were again played concurrently 
in Melbourne during early October. This 
amendment continued Golf Victoria’s ongoing 
desire to align men’s and women’s events 
wherever possible as well as better utilise 
appreciated course access within Melbourne. 

- The 89th year of Men’s Country Week 
resulted in Goulburn Murray being victorious 
in the Men’s District Teams Shield competition, 
while Murray Darling and South Gippsland won 
the Plate and Bowl competitions respectively. 

- The Women’s Country Teams saw North 
Eastern winning the Division 1 title with East 
Gippsland victorious in Division 2 and Murray 
Darling taking out Division 3.

- The Victorian Country Men’s Team defeated 

won the Doug Bachli Trophy in 2018 and 6 
other senior amateur events. Buninyong’s 
Helen Pascoe won the Victorian Senior 
Women’s Scratch Trophy for the third year in 
a row with a scratch stableford average of 
33.75 points. 

Within national level senior women’s events, 
Sue Wooster from The National capped off 
a superb 2018 in winning the Australian 
Women’s Senior Amateur. Having finished 
runner-up at the 2018 US Senior Women’s 
Amateur in early October, Wooster took out 
the Australian title by defeating Tasmanian 
Tammy Hall two and one in the final played 

the South Australian Country Team in the 
annual match played at the Mt Gambier Golf 
Club in South Australia during late October. 
The eight-man Victorian Country Team won 

at the Sandy Creek Golf Club. The Victorian 
Senior Women’s team of Sue Wooster, Helen 
Pascoe and Lynne Brown finished as runners-
up to New South Wales in the Interstate 
team’s competition played in conjunction with 
the 2018 Australian Women’s Senior Amateur 
Championship.

Sue Wooster and Helen Pascoe were also 
selected in the Australian Senior Women’s 
team that contested the inaugural Women’s 
Senior Trans-Tasman Cup against New Zealand 
at the Grange Golf Club on October 29-30.  

by 7.5 points in the multi-format event.

The team consisted of Caleb Bovalina 
(Tocumwal), Tim Coffey (Traralgon), David 
Dorning (The National), Shane Grover (Nhill), 
Brett Kellow (Mooroopna), Matt Lever (The 
National), Caleb Perry (Warrnambool) and Matt 
Walkenhorst (Hamilton) and was managed by 
John Snowden (Mortlake). 

- The 2018 Victorian Women’s Country 
Championship, the Glenelg Cup and 
the Country Foursomes were hosted at 
Yarrawonga in late July. Cobram-Barooga’s 
Steffanie Vogel defeated Judy Langford two 
and one in the 18-hole championship final.

- The Victorian Men’s Sand Greens 
Championship was played at Maldon with 
Belvoir Park’s Ben Tatt producing a 36-hole 
total of 127 to win the title from Craig Boucher 
of Midlands by five-strokes. 

- Mary-Anne Davis from Murray Downs won 
the 2018 Victorian Women’s Sandgreens 
Championship also played at Maldon. Davis 
won in a play-off from Neangar Park’s Helen 
Leech after both players had tied on a 36-hole 
total of 156.  

Metropolitan defeated Kingston Heath by 
four matches to three in the Men’s final 
while the Commonwealth Colts team was 
victorious over Royal Melbourne by three 
matches to two in the Colts final.

SENIOR GOLF 
In 2018, the Victorian Senior Golf Programme consisted of 33 events with 819 individual 
players participating over the year. 

GOLF VICTORIA PENNANT

2018 Golf Victoria Pennant saw Metropolitan win the Division 
1 Men’s title while Commonwealth took out both the Division 1 
Women’s and Colts titles. 
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David Capaldo the Team Coach for his 12th 
year.

The Victorian Junior Girls’ Team also 
finished fourth in the 2018 Australian Girls’ 
Interstate Teams Matches, played at Royal 
Perth Golf Club, WA, during April. The team 
consisted of Alizza Hetherington (Captain), 
Linley Ooi, Piper Stubbs, Ashleigh Hall, 
Sheradyn Johnson and Kay Bannan. The 
Team Manager was Jo Charlton and Darren 
Cole the Team Coach. 

The Women’s Interstate Teams Matches 
were held at Glenelg, with Victoria fading 
to finish fourth after showing some early 
promise.   The Victorian Women’s State Team 
consisted of Alizza Hetherington (Captain), 
Kono Matsumoto, Jess Pickwick, Steffi 
Vogel, Alex Hilliard and Olivia Kline.  The 
Team Manager was Lisa Jean with Darren 
Cole the Team Coach. 

The Victorian Junior Boys’ Team finished 
fourth at the 2018 Australian Boys’ 
Interstate Teams Matches in a very closely 
fought series.  The series was played at 
Melville Glades Golf Club, WA, during April. 
The team consisted of Jasper Stubbs 
(Captain), Phoenix Campbell, Nathan Page, 
Harry Goakes, Daniel Gill and James Walker. 
The Team Manager was Ashley Marshall and 

COMPETITIONS  COMPETITIONS 

2018 GV Pennant Women’s Division 1 
Winners: Commonwealth

GOLF VICTORIA PENNANT
Commonwealth’s Women’s team secured 
back-to-back Women’s Division 1 titles by 
defeating Huntingdale in the final by four 
matches to three. 

Other Men’s Divisional winners were: 
Huntingdale (Division 2), Eynesbury 
(Division 3), Sandhurst (Division 4), Medway 
(Division 5) and Eastern (Division 6).

Other Women’s Divisional winners were: 
Royal Melbourne (Division 2), Keysborough 
(Division 3) & Rossdale (Division 4).

Other Colts Division winners were: The 
National (Division 2), Cranbourne (Division 
3), Box Hill (Division 4) & Bacchus Marsh 
(Division 5).

Winner’s in Friday Women’s Pennant were 
Huntingdale (Division 1), Kingston Heath 
(Division 2), Woodlands (Division 3) and 
Spring Valley (Division 4).

2018 Victorian Junior Masters Champions: 
Tyler Duncan & Yuka Saso

2018 Victorian Girls’ and Boys’ Champions: 
Sophie Yip and Kazuma Kobori

Yuka Saso from the Philippines took out the 
Victorian Junior Girls Masters after finishing 
on 282 to win by a substantial 12 strokes from 
Charley Jacobs from South Australia. Only one 
course was used each round reducing the field 
capacity to 136 boys and 55 girls. Australia, 
Singapore, India and New Zealand were 
represented in the field.

Following appreciated sponsorship of the 
tournament from Sportscover, the event was 
once again streamed live.

– New Zealand’s Kuzuma Kobori successfully 
defended the Victorian Boys Championship 
played at Moonah Links Golf Club (Open 
Course) over 72-holes with a total of 295. His 
final day low round of three-under 69 sealed 

victory over West Australian Hayden Hopewell 
by four strokes.

Played concurrently with the Victorian Boys’ 
Championship, Sophie Yip of New South 
Wales won the 2018 Victorian Junior Girls 
Championship with a total of 288. Her pitch-in 
on the final hole for eagle secured her victory 
by two shots over June Song. 

- Barwon Heads hosted the final round of the 
2018 Junior Victorian Open. A three-way playoff 
was needed to determine the boys winner after 
the trio tied on 283.  Jasper Stubbs, William 
Arnold and Jack Buchanan battled their way 
through the playoff before Victoria’s Jasper 
Stubbs prevailed on the second playoff hole 
with a par. 

Min-A Yoon dominated the girls Championship 
with a barnstorming 13 shot victory. The South 
Korean finished at 14 under-par with rounds 
of 69, 68, 69 and 70 for a tally of 276. New 
Zealander Rose Zheng finished second on 289. 

- 42 Teams competed in the 2018 Junior Pennant 
season over 8 Regions. Box Hill took home 
the title with a thrilling victory against Royal 
Melbourne 1 at Southern Golf Club. Both teams 
tied on 3 individual matches each, however Box 
Hill prevailed on the first playoff hole. 

JUNIOR

In January, Tyler Duncan from Queensland won the Victorian 
Junior Boys Masters with a tally of 287 played at the Churchill 
– Waverley Golf & Bowls Club. Duncan won by three strokes 
from Frank Vucic from South Australia. 

2018 Victorian Junior Open Champions: 
Jasper Stubbs and Min A-Yoon

2018 Junior Pennant Winners:  
Box Hill Golf Club

2018 Victorian Men’s Team

2018 Victorian Boys’ Team

 2018 Victorian Women’s Team 

2018 Victorian Girls’ Team

The men’s team was successful in 
defending their title after an extremely 
tight final against Queensland was drawn, 
four matches each.  With Victoria finishing 
on top of the ladder during the round robin 
matches the title was secured.  The Victorian 
Men’s State Team consisted of Zach Murray 
(Captain), David Micheluzzi, Matias Sanchez, 
Kyle Michel, William Heffernan, Lukas 
Michel, Blake Collyer and Darcy Brereton. 
The Team Manager was Brian Lasky, with 
Martin Joyce the Team Coach.

A highlight of the series was David 
Micheluzzi’s week, winning all matches 
at number 1, which over history has been 
rarely achieved.  Allied to that was that this 
win secured the trophy for Victoria for 4 of 
the past 5 years.

STATE TEAMS

The 2018 Interstate Series’ were held in South Australia at The Grange Golf Club (East) for 
the men’s series and Glenelg Golf Club for the women’s series.
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DEVELOPMENT
Programmes

COMPETITIONS  

ZACH MURRAY – WA Open Winner

DAVID MICHELUZZI – WA Open Runner Up

MATIAS SANCHEZ, ZACH MURRAY – Vic Open Low Amateur

DAVID MICHELUZZI – Australian Amateur Runner Up

DAVID MICHELUZZI – Men’s Australian Open Low Amateur

DAVID MICHELUZZI – Australian Master of the Amateurs Winner

DARCY BRERETON – Australian Master of the Amateurs Runner Up

JULIENNE SOO – Australian Master of the Amateurs Runner Up

ANDRE LAUTEE – Victorian Amateur Champion

BLAKE COLLYER – Cotton States Invitational Winner (USA)

MARK BOULTON – NSW Mid-Amateur Champion

GORDON CLANEY, SUE WOOSTER – Australian Senior Amateur Champions

MARK LEISHMAN – Arnold Palmer Invitational Winner (PGA Tour)

STEPHANIE BUNQUE – Queen Sirikit Cup

DAVID MICHELUZZI – Eisenhower Trophy

DAVID MICHELUZZI, ZACH MURRAY – Asia Pacific Amateur Championship

GREG RHODES, GORDON CLANEY – Asia Pacific Senior Team

SUE WOOSTER, HELEN PASCOE – Women’s Senior Trans-Tasman Trophy

Victorian players participated as Australian 
representatives in the following events during 2018:

There were some outstanding performances by 
Victorian players throughout 2018, including:

OTHER NOTABLE PERFORMANCES 

AUSTRALIAN REPRESENTATION

Image: 2018 Australian Queen Sirikit Cup Representative: Stephanie Bunque 

2018 West Australian Open 
Champion: Zach Murray  

VICTORIAN INSTITUTE OF SPORT

The Victorian Institute of Sport Golf Programme has played a pivotal role 
in developing Victoria’s leading players since its introduction in 1990. 
Each year graduates from the programme and current scholarship holders feature prominently in pinnacle 
amateur competitions and world professional golf tournaments. 

VIS Golf Programme graduates have achieved an outstanding record of tournament wins including in excess of 
fifty victories on the US PGA Tour, European PGA and Australasian PGA tours plus other victories in major events 
in South Africa, Japan and Asia.

This record stands as testament to the contribution made to junior development and high performance by 
Victoria’s golf clubs, District Associations, Golf Victoria and the world recognised quality of the VIS programme 
and the ongoing level of excellence in its coaching, sports science and life skill contributions.

Congratulations and thanks are extended to Martin Joyce (Head Coach), Darren Cole (Assistant Coach) and the 
team of VIS sports science professionals and support staff who have worked so successfully with our talented 
emerging players throughout 2018.

Support with equipment has been again provided through a valued “Titleist” partnership with the Acushnet 
company.

Sincere thanks are also extended to all golf clubs which assisted the programme by making their courses 
available for training sessions.

VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION

During 2018, a total of $41,568 was provided by the Victorian Golf 
Foundation in grants to clubs and District Associations and for support 
to state-level golf development programmes.  The majority of this 
funding is directed towards junior golf development via the regional 
development programme and women’s participation initiatives.

Since the commencement of its annual funding and grants programme in 1995, the VGF has injected a total 
of over $3.22 million towards keeping Victorian golf and golf clubs healthy. 

GOLF VICTORIA ELITE PLAYER PROGRAMME

2018 saw the consolidation of the Golf Victoria Elite Player Programme 
(EPP), which sits as the state’s Tier 2 programme under the revised 
Golf Australia High Performance pathway model.
Paul Skinner continued as the State Development Coach and he has delivered and overseen much of 
the EPP programme in conjunction with VIS Head Coach, Marty Joyce. The programme also utilises the 
same sports science expertise as the VIS.

Many players achieved great results throughout the year as the EPP programme rolled out, with most 
filling our state team representative spots.

Sincere thanks to the Victorian clubs that have also supported the EPP, and particular thanks to Spring 
Valley Golf Club which is the home base for the programme.
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DEVELOPMENT
Programmes 

DEVELOPMENT
Programmes 

MYGOLF JUNIOR PROGRAMME

Conducted at golf clubs and facilities across Victoria and delivered by 
accredited PGA of Australia members and Golf Australia Community 
Instructors, the MyGolf programme is a structured introductory 
programme to the sport of golf for children endorsed by both Golf 
Australia and the PGA of Australia. 
Each year the MyGolf programme continues to strengthen, and in 2018 Victoria finished the year with 
90 active MyGolf Centres and 3847 MyGolf participants. Victoria is leading all Australian States and 
Territories in the take up of the MyGolf programme. 

As part of the MyGolf programme in 2018 Golf Victoria held a MyGolfer Day at the Oates Vic Open, and 
a MyGolfer Skills Challenge in conjunction with the Victorian Boys’ & Girls’ Championships. 

SCHOOLS GOLF

The popularity of the school events continues to increase with 
thousands of children beginning or continuing their journey into the 
game of golf. With all the rules modified, all the holes shortened, and 
equipment available to borrow, the school events provide an inviting 
environment for students to have fun and learn about the game. 
The Victorian Primary Schools Golf event entered its 18th year in 2018 with the participatory competition 
attracting 2169 primary school students throughout the state, conducted at 46 different venues. The Victorian 
Secondary Schools Golf event attracted 634 secondary school students across 24 different venues. 

With the introduction of 9-hole division events and 18-hole state finals across both secondary and primary 
events it provides a level of competition that will encourage the beginner to get out on the course, yet also 
provide the skilled golfer a chance to take out the state title. 

MYGOLF SPORTING SCHOOLS PROGRAMME

Sporting Schools is a $100 million Australian Government initiative 
designed to help schools to increase children’s participation in sport, 
and to connect children with community sport during, before and 
after school. 
Through the MyGolf Sporting Schools programme, Golf Victoria has connected golf clubs, PGA of 
Australia Professionals and Community Instructors with local schools to help introduce golf through 
school sport. In 2018 141 schools and 10,147 students were involved in the five-session programme. 

PLAY 9

Mark Corradan (Cobram-Barooga), Herbie McCandless (Yering 
Meadows), Lynne Turner (Beaufort) and Matyke Scott (Mt Martha) 
took out the leading men’s and women’s spots at the 2018 Victorian 
Play 9 State Final played over the magnificent West course at Royal 
Melbourne Golf Club on Sunday 4 November.
The quartet subsequently travelled to Sydney and contested the Australian Play 9 Final as part of the 2018 
Emirates Men’s Australian Open at The Lakes Golf Club in mid-November. One hundred and three players 
from 57 different clubs, including 40 country clubs, played at Royal Melbourne on a near perfect Spring 
afternoon to conclude the Victorian Play 9 Championship.

As part of the Play 9 initiative, nine-hole qualifying competitions were held from July at numerous clubs both 
in Melbourne and regional Victoria to determine the finalists that progressed through to Royal Melbourne. 

Play 9 was established as part of an industry-wide promotion of nine-hole golf as a fast, fun and enjoyable 
playing option that can fit into busy lives. Golf Victoria expresses its sincere appreciation to the Royal 
Melbourne Golf Club and all of the clubs that staged qualifying rounds in the second year of the event to 
promote nine-hole golf.

COMMUNITY INSTRUCTOR COURSE

The Community Instructor Course has been designed to grow the sport 
of golf through the effective development of a volunteer workforce 
at the grassroots level, with a long-term vision of community golf 
instructors working alongside PGA Professionals in programme 
delivery at golf courses, driving ranges and schools.
In 2018 we saw the addition of 33 MyGolf Club Instructors, 7 MyGolf School Instructors (non-teacher 
accreditation), 15 MyGolf School Instructors (teacher accreditation) and 10 SwingFit Instructors. 

Vic Primary School Championship Final 2018 Victorian Play 9 Winners: Lynne Turner and Michael Corraden
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DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT

women’s specific programmes by way of facilitating the national 
and state based, “MyGolf”, “Play Golf” and “Community Instructor” 
programmes. Many of our clubs and districts now have strategic 
plans to assist them in their future directions, their funding 
opportunities and to assist with providing quality outcomes for 
their members. Many of these programmes have been assisted with 
funding through the VGF.

In particular the Regional Development Programme has assisted 14 
of the 15 Victorian districts to amalgamate with the final district 
scheduled to be amalgamated during the next 12 months, thus 
establishing modern day committee structures to best improve golf 
in their geographical area. Additionally, five of these districts now 
have a dedicated officer to approach gender equality. Our Victorian 
Districts and as a consequence our clubs are leaders in our sport 
and an example for other states.

The reporting year saw the addition of the first “Inclusive Initiative of 
the Year Award” presented at the Victorian Golf Industry Awards Dinner 
held at Arts Centre Melbourne. Congratulations to Pakenham & District 
Golf Club and PGA All Abilities Coaches Haydn Thompson and Scott 
Laycock for taking out the inaugural award. Pakenham and District Golf 
Club is embarking on a facility upgrade that includes an “all abilities” 
playground for the wider community, accessible function areas and 
partnerships with Special Olympics Victoria. 

This increased capacity allows people with a disability across the 
State the opportunities to connect or reconnect with the game 
of golf. Capacity has now been created throughout the State with 
new All Abilities Coaches and programmes operating in Mildura, 
Tocumwal, the Barwon region and Gippsland. 

The concept was mirrored with the Northern association with similar 
numbers. A special thanks to PGA All Abilities Coaches Paul Boxall 
(Edithvale) and Sienna Voglis (Ivanhoe) for coordinating the days.

Golf Australia in partnership with PGA Tour and ISPS Handa held the 
world first, ISPS Handa Disabled Cup. Twelve of the top players on 
the World Rankings would mirror play of the World Cup of Golf over 
36 holes off the same tees and conditions as the professionals. Golf 
Victoria would like to thank the Victorian State Government (SRV) 
and the PGA Tour for their support of this world first event.

PARTNERSHIPS

We welcome disability 
service provider GenU on 
board in conjunction with 
the TAC in making the 
Barwon region accessible 
for people with a disability 
through the acquisition of 
a Paragolfer for the region. 
Two Stand Up and Play Golf Days were 
held by GenU to raise over $50,000. 

This new partnership is extending into 
other regions with Golf Victoria joining 
the GenU / Mornington Peninsula Shire 
Fit & Fun Programme.  

Golf Victoria would like to thank Special 
Olympics Australia, Disability Sport and 
Recreation, Amputee Golf Victoria, Blind 
Golf Victoria and Deaf Golf Victoria for 
their continued support.

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Regional Development Programme across 
Victoria is supported by a team of Regional 
Development Officers who have extensive 
experience in a wide range of golf activity 
assistance across both game development 
and participation as well as club help  
and governance. 
The skill set of the officers conducting these activities is broad 
and includes a mix of PGA Professionals, Sport Administrators from 
Consultative Services as well as Regional Sports Assemblies and 
Sports Australia. The team is spread across Victoria and are based 
out of Geelong (South West & Western Districts), Ballarat (Ballarat 
& Wimmera Districts), Bendigo (Golf Central Victoria, Kara Kara, 
Northern & Murray Darling Districts), Shepparton (Goulburn Murray, 
North East & Dalhousie Districts), Frankston (Peninsula District) 
and Warragul (East, West & South Gippsland Districts).

In 2018 the programme concentrated on improving the capabilities 
of district golf associations as well as club committees and has 
comprehensively assisted the delivery of junior, men’s and 

INCLUSION REPORT

Golf Victoria would like to thank the Victorian 
State Government (SRV), Golf Australia and 
the PGA of Australia for the co-contribution 
to inclusive golf across Victoria. 

PARTICIPATION HIGHLIGHTS

The Sport Australia Sporting Schools programme 
continues to build momentum in Special Schools 
across Victoria. The highlight of this programme 
was the development of a MyGolf All Abilities 
Gala Day supported by the Southern Special 
Schools Sports Association where 16 Special 
Schools and 180 kids would participate in the 
event held at Edithvale Golf Course. 

Two Stand Up and Play 
Golf Days were held 
by GenU to raise over 
$50,000. 

EDUCATION

The expansion of the PGA All Abilities Coach 
programme continues across the State with 
numbers of accredited coaches doubling to 36. 
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GA HANDICAPPING SYSTEM

In September 2018, Golf Australia introduced 
a revised process asking users to log-in to 
access their GA Handicap by registering their 
email address via the Golf Australia website. 
By moving in this direction Golf Australia will be able to develop and 
maintain a rich source of data to generate insights that will be critical 
to growing the industry’s capacity to support golf clubs and their 
businesses. It will also be used to communicate important information 
and updates, and to develop innovative ways to improve the golf 
experience of individual players. 

COURSE RATING

Rating reviews continue to be undertaken at 
the request of clubs and rating adjustments 
for clubs who have made substantial changes 
to their courses. 
The use of the statistical data available from Golflink has proved 
invaluable in this review process. 

During 2018, many clubs requested to have shorter tees rated for men 
and some slightly longer courses rated for women to allow for more 
variety and options for their members.  

STATE GOVERNMENT OF VICTORIA – SUPPORT 
The financial support and consultative 
advice received from the State Government of 
Victoria towards the following programmes 
and events in 2018 is acknowledged: -

DEVELOPMENT
Technical Services

DEVELOPMENT
Sponsors 

MYGOLF JUNIOR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

PLAYGOLF PROGRAMME

SWINGFIT

MEN’S & WOMEN’S VICTORIAN OPEN 

RULES OF GOLF

2018 was a watershed year for the Rules of Golf 
with the confirmation of the key rule changes 
due on 1 January 2019. During the year clubs 
received numerous communications updating 
timelines for the various resource materials 
available for the education of members. 
This included a checklist for clubs to ensure that decisions could 
be made well in advance as to the marking of the course, scorecard 
preparation for new local rules and the best way to educate their 
members on the changes.

Clubs were encouraged to email their members the link to www.golf.
org.au/newrules  which directed them to the Golf Australia website to 
view the many video clips demonstrating how to apply the new rules. 

During the latter half of 2018 Golf Victoria received and distributed 
121,000 copies of the Players Edition rule books to all member clubs 
and districts, flyers and posters.

The R&A online academy will be updated in the new year and continues 
to be a huge success with many Victorian golfers registering for 
the free rules education programme. All Victorian Clubs have been 
encouraged to alert their members to this valuable learning tool. 

Moving forward, Golf Australia as part of the One Golf arrangements 
agreed with Golf Victoria to continue to conduct, two-day Level 2 rules 
accreditation courses targeted specifically at key golf club personnel 
including golf operations staff, club captains, PGA members or match 
committee members. The course is designed to cover various topics 
including the rules of golf, course set up and competition conditions. 
Attendees also have the option to sit a theoretical and practical rules 
exam should they wish to gain Level 2 rules accreditation. 

In December all existing Victorian Level 2 referees were given the 
opportunity to sit a 2-hour exam on the new rules to enable them to 
be ready for the 2019 tournament programme.

“The R&A online academy 
will be updated in the 
new year and continues 
to be a huge success with 
many Victorian golfers 

Sincere appreciation is extended to all Golf 
Victoria sponsors including those who have 
partnered programmes and events, along with 
the many supporters of the Oates Vic Open at 
Thirteenth Beach Golf Links:



GOLF VICTORIA 2018 ANNUAL REPORT30 31

2018 RESULTS
Women 

2018 RESULTS
Women

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

AMATEUR Dec 10 – 12 Huntingdale Maddison Hinson-Tolchard 
(Gosnells, WA)

5/4 Kirsten Rudgeley 
(Mt Lawley, WA)

Victorian Medallist Dec 6 - 8 Commonwealth & 
Kingston Heath

Min A Yoon (KOR) 291 Maddison Hinson-
Tolchard (Gosnells, 
WA)

292

OPEN Feb 1 – 4  Thirteenth Beach Minjee Lee (WA) 279 Karis Davidson (Qld) 284

Foursomes 
Championship

Oct 30 Metropolitan Taylah Robinson (Southern) & 
Jazy Roberts (Belvoir)

80 Wendy Ji (Eastern) & 
Zehra Stewart (Green 
Acres) 

90

Susie Tolhurst Trophy 2018 Jessica Pickwick (Kilmore) 71.00 Steffanie Vogel 
(Cobram-Barooga)

71.08

Champion of 
Champions

Sep 14 Metropolitan Jessica Pickwick (Kilmore) 157 Keely Marx (Heritage) 167

Joan Fisher Trophy Sep 14 Jeneath Wong (Metropolitan) 151 Kono Matsumoto 
(Victoria)

156

COUNTRY 
CHAMPIONSHIP

Jul 26 Yarrawonga Mulwala Steffanie Vogel (Cobram-
Barooga)

5/4 Judy Langford 
(Wodonga)

Betty Kernot Trophy Jul 24 – 25 Helen Pascoe (Buninyong) 159 Amy Leeson 
(Buninyong)

160

Glenelg Cup – Nett Jul 24 – 25 Glenda Clarke (Warrnambool) 149 Meredith Ramadan 
(The National) 

152

Marion Dwyer 
Foursomes

Jul 23 Rebecca Thomas (Leongatha) & 
Helen Pascoe (Buninyong) 

81 Marion Venn (Terang) 
& Lauren Higgns 
(Warrnambool) 

89

SENIOR AMATEUR

Championship Flight Sep 10 - 11   Hill Top & Shepparton Kim Burke (Shelley Beach, NSW) 4/2 Sandra Collingwood 
(Keysborough)

55-64 Flight Helen Drake (Dorset) 5/3 Alma Finda-Russell 
(Yarrambat Park)

65+ Flight Bobette Wilkinson (Tocumwal) 3/2 Heather Harley 
(Kooringal)

55-59 Years Kim Burke (Shelley Beach, NSW) 163

60-64 Years Helen Pascoe (Buninyong) 160

65-69 Years Glenys Ferguson (Wanneroo, WA) 169

70+ Years Sandra Collingwood 
(Keysborough)

179

Sandgreens Sep 5 - 6 Maldon Mary-Anne Davis (Murray Downs) 156 – 
play-off

Helen Leech 
(Neangar Park)

156

Par 3 Jun 6 – 7 Kyabram Parkland Piper Stubbs (Huntingdale) 118 Steffanie Vogel 
(Cobram-Barroga) 

122

Play 9 State Final Nov 4 Royal Melbourne Maryke Scott (Mt Martha) 23 pts 
c/b

Lynne Turner 
(Beaufort)

23 pts

Mid-Amateur Jan 14 – 15  The National 
(Long Island Site) & 
Cranbourne

Sue Wooster (The National) 152 Kate Caridakis 
(Woodlands) 

160

AUTUMN COUNTRY TOURNAMENT

Ruby McKenzie 
Trophy

Apr 23 – 24 Murray Downs Helen Pascoe (Buninyong) 152 Deborah Rix (Cobden) 158 
c/b

Vi Teesdale Trophy Apr 23 – 24 Murray Downs Tracey Coulston (Numurkah) 143 
c/b

Karen Fitzgerald 
(Rich River) 

143

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

SPRING COUNTRY TOURNAMENT

Ruby McKenzie 
Trophy 

Sept 20 - 21 Barwon Heads & 
Curlewis

Helen Pascoe (Buninyong) 156 Casey Wild 
(Commonwealth) 

157

Vi Teesdale Trophy Sept 20 - 21 Barwon Heads & 
Curlewis

Marian McKenzie (Warrnambool) 143 
c/b

Susan Wilton 
(Warrnambool)

143

WOMEN’S PENNANT                 

Division 1                May 20 Cranbourne Commonwealth 4 Huntingdale 3

Division 2                May 20 Cranbourne Royal Melbourne 5 Yarra Yarra 2

Division 3                May 6 The National  
(Long Island)

Keysborough 4 Heritage 3

Division 4                May 6 Kew Rossdale 5 Settlers Run 2

WOMEN’S FRIDAY PENNANT                

Division 1                May 11 Cranbourne Huntingdale 5.5 Commonwealth 1.5

Division 2                May 11 Yarra Yarra Kingston Heath 5 Green Acres 2

Division 3                May 11 Yarra Yarra Woodlands 4 Centenary Park 3

Division 4                May 11 Woodlands Spring Valley 6 Ranfurlie 1

COUNTRY TEAMS MATCHES                      

Division 1 Oct 1 - 3 Southern, Woodlands, 
Huntingdale

North Eastern 4/22 Golf Peninsula Vic. 2/19.5

Division 2 Oct 1 – 3 Keysborough, 
Cranbourne, 
Patterson River

East Gippsland 3/16.5 Dalhousie 2/15.5

Division 3 Oct 1 - 3 The National, Spring 
Valley, Rossdale

Murray Darling 3/17.5 West Gippsland 1/9

Doris Chambers 
Cup  - Final 1

Oct 5 Cranbourne Chris Munday & June Pusmucans 
(Maffra)

31 pts 
c/b

Lynette Rose & 
Lorraine Irving 
(Rosanna)

31 pts

Doris Chambers 
Cup  - Final 2

Oct 11 Sanctuary Lakes Beth Murray & Jenny McSwain 
(Kyneton)

36 pts 
c/b

Margaret DeVries 
& Barbara Croaker 
(Anglesea)

36 pts

Silver Spoon Nov 12 Sandhurst (North 
Course)

Catherine Robinson (Royal 
Melbourne)

38 pts Leanne Whitty 
(Eastern) 

37 pts 
(c/b)

MONA MACLEOD BROOCH

Silver Division  
- Metropolitan

Suzanne Cripps (The National) -2

Silver Division  
- Country

Jenny Cronin (Hepburn Springs) -7

Bronze Division  
- Metropolitan

Lorraine Ritchie (Centenary Park) -2

Bronze Division  
- Country

Biljana Krynic (Hepburn Springs) -11

Royal Women’s 
Hospital 4BBB

Oct 22 Huntingdale Maree Fitzgerald & Helen 
McIntosh (Coleraine)

47 pts May Wong & Gwenlyn 
Pau (The Heritage) 

44 pts



GOLF VICTORIA 2018 ANNUAL REPORT32 33

2018 RESULTS
Men & Mixed 

2018 RESULTS
Men & Mixed 

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

Division 4 May 6 The National (Long 
Island)

Box Hill 3 Sandhurst 2

Division 5 May 6 Eastwood Bacchus Marsh 4 Green Acres 1

COUNTRY WEEK MATCHES

Shield Division Oct 1 – 3 Southern, Woodlands, 
Huntingdale

Goulburn Murray 3/18.5 Golf Peninsula Vic 3/16.5

Plate Division Oct 1 – 3 Keysborough, 
Cranbourne, 
Patterson River

Murray Darling 3/17 West Gippsland 2/15.5

Bowl Division Oct 1 – 3 The National, Spring 
Valley, Rossdale

South Gippsland 3/22 Dalhousie 2/16.5

Senior Club Teams Dec 6 – 7 Sorrento Kew 467 The National 472

Ivo Whitton Trophy 2018 Kyle Michel (Shepparton) 69.19 Andree Lautee 
(Kingston Heath)

69.72

Doug Bachli Trophy 2018 Geoffrey Charnley (Rossdale) 2665 Ian McCleary 
(Kooringal)

2589

Paul Lulofs Trophy 2018 Ian McCleary (Kooringal) 1813 Ignatius 
Duivenvoorden 
(Yarram)

1632

FOUR-BALL CHAMPIONSHIP

Men’s Mar 19-20 Sorrento &
The National

Dean Anderson & Blake Anderson 
(Northern) 

95 pts

Women’s Mar 19-20 Sorrento &
The National

Ellis Tickell (Peninsula-
Kingswood) & Jane Rawlinson 
(Victoria)

79 pts

Mixed Mar 19-20 Sorrento &
The National

Maree Fitzgerald & Noel 
Fitzgerald (Coleraine)

86 pts

FAMILY CHAMPIONSHIP

Men’s Nov 25 Barwon Heads Gary Dickson (Gisborne) & Ross 
Dickson (RACV Cape Schanck)

45 pts 
c/b

Women’s Nov 25 Barwon Heads Lorinda Hartley (Peninsula-
Kingswood) & Bettine Hartley 
(GSM)

48 pts

Mixed Nov 25 Barwon Heads Paul McCuskey (Ballarat) & 
Sharon McCuskey (Ballarat)

42 pts

VGF GOLF DAY

Women’s & Mixed Jul 2 Royal Melbourne Women’s
Julie Gray (Commonwealth) & 
Sienna Voglis (PGA)

42 pts Mixed
Fi Langford (Royal 
Melbourne) & 
Anthony Rule 
(Royal Melbourne)

41 pts

Men’s Jul 2 Royal Melbourne AM Winners
Peter Farrell (Eastwood) & Brett 
Angove (Mt Derrimut)

44 pts PM Winners
Adam Attard 
(Bacchus Marsh) 
& Victor Czapp 
(Bacchus Marsh) 

45 pts

GV HEART OPEN

Don Lawrence Trophy Mar 14 Woodlands Kenneth Forsyth (Yarrawonga 
Mulwala)

41 pts

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

AMATEUR Dec 10 – 12 Huntingdale Andree Lautee (Kingston 
Heath)

2&1 Kyle Michel 
(Shepparton)

Victorian Medallist Dec 6 – 8 Commonwealth & 
Kingston Heath

Christopher Fan (Avondale) 283 David Micheluzzi 
(Cranbourne)

284

OPEN Feb 7 – 10 Thirteenth Beach Simon Hawkes (TAS) 274 Harrison Endycott 
(NSW)

274

Senior Amateur Sep 10 – 12 Hill Top & 
Shepparton 

Geoffrey Charnley (Rossdale) 223 Doug Francis 
(Metropolitan)

225

Mid-Amateur Jan 14 – 15  Cranbourne & The 
National (Long 
Island)

Mark Boulton (Phillip Island) 147 Harry Smiles 
(Peninsula-
Kingswood), Peter 
O’Dwyer (The 
National), Keith 
Shepherd (Antill Park)

147

Champion of Champions Dec 16 Woodlands Andree Lautee (Kingston 
Heath)

70 Antony Majstorovic 
(Victoria)

71

AMATEUR FOURSOMES Oct 30 Metropolitan George Worrall (Kingston 
Heath) & Aiden Didone 
(Metropolitan)

66 Kyle Michel 
(Shepparton) & Blake 
Collyer (Metropolitan)

68

Australasian Foursomes Oct 30 Metropolitan Harrison Gilbert & Matthew 
McCole (Peninsula – 
Kingswood)

74 Reuben Kincaid & Paul 
Andrijczak (Yallourn)

75

Sir Dallas Brooks Trophy
Mixed Foursomes

Oct 30 – 
Nov 2

Metropolitan Dallas Wickenden (Yarra 
Yarra) & Phillip Wickenden 
(Yarra Yarra) 

19th Mike Smith 
(Woodlands) & Kathy 
Smith (Woodlands)

Mixed Foursomes Dec 1 Metropolitan Caleb Bovalina & Danika 
Coyne (Commonwealth) 

74 Emily Smith 
(Huntingdale) & James 
Ford (Riversdale)

75

COUNTRY CHAMPION Feb 24 – 25 Rosebud Matthew Lever (The National) 148 Shane Grover (Nhill) 149 c/b

Colts Country Feb 24 – 25 Rosebud Caleb Perry (Warrnambool) 152 Jordan Briggs 
(Horsham)

165

Sand Greens Sep 8-9 Maldon Ben Tatt (Belvoir Park) 127 Craig Boucher 
(Midlands) 

132

Par 3 Jun 9-10 Kyabram Parkland Darren Makin (Gardiners 
Run)

170 Jake Fullerton 
(Gardiners Run)

171 
c/b

Play 9 State Final Nov 4 Royal Melbourne Mark Corridan (Cobram-
Barooga)

25 pts Herbie McCandless 
(Yering Meadows) 

19 pts

MEN’S PENNANT

Division 1 May 20 Cranbourne Metropolitan 4 Kingston Heath 3

Division 2 May 6 Kew Huntingdale 4 Yarra Yarra 3

Division 3 May 6 Kew Eynesbury 5 Northern 2

Division 4 May 6 The National 
(Long Island)

Sandhurst 4 Riversdale 3

Division 5 May 6 Eastwood Medway 5 Cranbourne 2

Division 6 May 6 Eastwood Eastern 5.5 Whittlesea 1.5

COLTS PENNANT

Division 1 May 6 The National 
(Long Island)

Commonwealth 3 Royal Melbourne 2

Division 2 May 6 Kew The National 4.5 Yarra Yarra 0.5

Division 3 May 6 Eastwood Cranbourne 4 Heidelberg 1
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2018 RESULTS
Juniors 

2018 RESULTS
Juniors 

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

JUNIOR MASTERS Jan 22 - 25 Waverley & 
Churchill Park GC

Boys Tyler Duncan (Redcliffe) 287 Frank Vucic (Glenelg) 290

Under 16 James Walker
(Wodonga)

292 Nathan Page (The 
National)

294

Under 14 Nivethan Kanthan 
(Spring Valley)

309 Nicholas Siegmund
(The Grange)

318

Under 12 Rupert Toomey 
(Huntingdale)

329 Eric Zhuang 
(Riversdale)

345

Girls Yuak Saso (PHI) 281 Charley Jacobs 
(Glenelg, SA)

294

Under 16 Charley Jacobs 
(Glenelg, SA)

294 Maddison Hinson-
Tolchard (Gosnells, WA)

300

Under 14 Jeneath Wong 
(Huntingdale)

306 Sara Hidayat 
(Victoria)

338

Under 12 Anne Fernandez 
(Singapore)

304 Molly McLean 
(Rosebud)

346

JUNIOR COUNTRY 
(Boys)

Feb 24 - 25 Rosebud GC Matthew Lever  
(The National)

148 Daniel Gill (Wodonga) 149

JUNIOR COUNTRY 
REGIONS (Boys)

South Western 947 North Eastern 950

BOYS & GIRLS 
CHAMPIONSHIP

Sept 24 – 27 Moonah Links GC

Boys Kazuma Kobori (NZL) 278 Hayden Hopewell 
(Royal Fremantle, WA)

282

Under 16 Nathan Page (The 
National)

295 Jack Holland (Royal 
Melbourne)

304

Under 14 Jake Foley (Keppel 
Club, SIN)

309 Flynn Trembath 
(Kooringal)

325

Girls Sophie Yip (Concord, 
NSW)

288 June Song (Avondale, 
NSW)

290

Under 16 Sophie Yip (Concord, 
NSW)

288 Kay Bannan 
(Southern)

304

Under 14 Jeneath Wong 
(Metropolitan) 

304 Sayumi De Costa 
(Victoria)

337

JUNIOR VIC OPEN Dec 17 - 20 Barwon Heads & 
13th Beach GC

Boys Jasper Stubbs 
(Huntingdale)

283 play off William Arnold (Royal 
Adelaide, SA)

283

Under 16 Nathan Page (The 
National)

285 Harry Adams 
(Wonthaggi) 

297

Under 14 Nivethan Kanthan 
(Spring Valley)

310 Rupert Toomey 
(Huntingdale)

314

Girls Min-A Yoon (KOR) 276 Rose Zheng (NZL) 289

Under 16 Min-A Yoon (KOR) 276 Alessaandra Nagayo 
(Southern) 

295

Under 14 Alexandra Phanuruk 
(Metropoiltan)

347 Louise Baliton (Mt 
Derrimut)

355

EVENTS DATE COURSE WINNER/S SCORE RUNNER/S-UP SCORE

Junior Pennant Dec 9 Various Box Hill 3 matches 
Won in 
playoff

Royal Melbourne 3 matches

Geoff Ogilvy Trophy Jan – Dec Junior Averages 
Calendar of Events

Daniel Gill 
(Commonwealth)

68.27 Jasper Stubbs 
(Huntingdale)

68.93

Future Champions Trophy Jan – Dec Junior Averages 
Calendar of Events 

Jeneath Wong 
(Metropolitan/
Huntingdale)

69.60 Piper Stubbs
(Huntingdale)

70.27

SSV PRIMARY SCHOOLS EVENT Dec 5 Kooringal GC

Boys Harrison Gomez (Holy 
Rosary)

62 Rupert Toomey  
(Sacred Heart Parish)

64

Girls Molly McLean (Rye 
PS)

75 Portia Hall  
(Beaconhills College)

76

SSV SECONDARY SCHOOLS EVENT

JUNIOR May 25 Gardiners Run

Boys Thomas Hanson 
(Trinity College Colac)

68 Baxter Droop  
(Sacred Heart College)

70

Girls Alessandra Nagayo 
(Rowville College)

75 Jazy Roberts  
(Crusoe College)

76

SECONDARY May 18 Metropolitan GC

Boys Ryan Thomas 
(Rowville Secondary)

72 c/b Mitchell Crabbe 
(Geelong High School)

72

Girls Piper Stubbs 
(Rowville Secondary)

71 Linley Ooi (Melbourne 
Girls College)

77
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GOLF VICTORIA
Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

GOLF VICTORIA
Directors’ Statutory Report 

Your directors present their report on the 
company for the financial year ended 31 
December 2018. 

DIRECTORS 

The names of the directors in office at any 
time during or since the end of the financial 
year are: 

• Stephen Spargo (President) 
• Alison McCaig (Vice President)  
• Peter Nash (Finance Director)  
• Ross Anderson  
• Luci Bryce  
• Jeffrey (Mark) Dunstan  
• Dorothy Hisgrove  
• Lucinda McLeish  
• David Shilbury  

Directors have been in office since the start 
of the financial year to the date of this report 
unless otherwise stated. 

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Directors attended all required meetings 
at least to the levels prescribed by Golf 
Victoria.

OPERATING RESULTS 

The net profit of the company for the 
financial year after providing for income tax 
amounted to $1,357,871.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

A review of the operations of the company 
during the financial year and the results 
of those operations found that during the 
year, the company continued to engage in 
its principal activity, the results of which 
are disclosed in the attached financial 
statements. 

In late September 2018, Golf Victoria Ltd 
entered into an agreement (the “One Golf 
Services Agreement”) with Golf Australia 
Ltd pursuant to which Golf Victoria Ltd and 
Golf Australia Ltd have agreed that Golf 
Australia Ltd will provide particular services, 
as specified in the One Golf Services 
Agreement, to Golf Victoria Ltd for the 

benefit of Golf Victoria Ltd and its members 
which Golf Victoria Ltd had previously 
provided directly to its members. 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF 
AFFAIRS 

No significant changes in the state of affairs 
of the company occurred during the financial 
year, with the exception of the arrangements 
agreed between Golf Victoria Ltd and Golf 
Australia Ltd and set out in the One Golf 
Services Agreement. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The principal activity of the company 
during the financial year was promotion, 
administration and control of the game of 
golf in Victoria. No significant change in the 
nature of these activities occurred during the 
year save as mentioned above in relation to 
the One Golf Services Agreement. 

AFTER BALANCE DATE EVENTS 

No matters or circumstances have arisen 
since the end of the financial year which 
significantly affected or may significantly 
affect the operations of the company, the 
results of those operations, or the state of 
affairs of the company in future financial 
years. 

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS 

The company has contracted with Golf 
Australia Ltd for Golf Australia Ltd to deliver 
particular services to Golf Victoria Ltd for 
the benefit of its members, as set out in the 
One Golf Services Agreement, the result of 
which is that particular operations previously 
conducted by Golf Victoria Ltd directly will 
now be performed for Golf Victoria Ltd by Golf 
Australia Ltd. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

The company’s operations are not regulated 
by any significant environmental regulation 
under a law of the Commonwealth or of a 
State or Territory. 

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED 

No dividends were paid or declared since the 
start of the financial year. No recommendation 
for payment of dividends has been made. 

OPTIONS 

No options over issued shares or interests 
in the company were granted during or since 
the end of the financial year and there were 
no options outstanding at the end of the 
financial year. 

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICER OR AUDITOR 

No indemnities have been given or insurance 
premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has 

been an officer or auditor of the company. 

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE 
COMPANY 

No person has applied for leave of Court to 
bring proceedings on behalf of the company 
or intervene in any proceedings to which the 
company is a party for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the company 
for all or any part of those proceedings. 
The company was not a party to any such 
proceedings during the year. 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

A copy of the auditor’s independence 
declaration as required under section 307C 
of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on 
page 37. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of 
the Board of Directors. 

This declaration is made in accordance with 
a resolution of the directors. 

STEPHEN SPARGO  
President

PETER NASH  
Finance Director

10 May 2019

BOARD MEMBER HELD ATTENDED

S. Spargo 6 6

A. McCaig 6 4

P. Nash 6 6

R. Anderson 6 5

L. Bryce 6 6

J. Dunstan 6 5

D. Hisgrove 6 6

L. McLeish 6 6

D. Shilbury 6 6
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GOLF VICTORIA
Financial Report 

GOLF VICTORIA INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2018

INCOME NOTE 2018 2017

Grant Revenue - Home of Golf 1,454,608 -

Revenue from Ordinary Activities 7,075,749 7,014,056

Revenue from Victorian Open 2,028,053 1,723,037

TOTAL INCOME  (3) 10,558,410 8,737,093

GROSS PROFIT 10,558,410 8,737,093

LESS OPERATING EXPENSES 

General Administration 2,761,866 3,472,285

Golf Australia Subscriptions 1,881,789 1,746,301

Magazines, periodicals and Journals 415,233 421,491

Marketing 18,171 64,067

Occupancy Expenses 140,060 145,111

One Golf Services Fee  (2) 1,016,545 -

Other Expenses from Ordinary Activities 843,243 1,043,315

Victorian Open Expenses 2,123,633 1,734,059

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 9,200,539 8,626,629

NET PROFIT 1,357,871 110,465

GOLF VICTORIA BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2018

ASSETS NOTE 2018 2017

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (4) 2,478,001 812,871

Inventories (6) - 106,192

Other financial assets (7) 7,407,557 3,810,165

Trade and other receivables (5) 688,993 1,484,717

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,574,551 6,213,945

FIXED ASSETS

Capital Works in Progress - Home of Golf  (2) 1,454,608 -

Property, plant and equipment (8) 105,493 282,172

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 1,560,101 282,172

TOTAL ASSETS 12,134,652 6,496,116

LIABILITIES 2018 2017

Current Liabilities

Provisions (10) - 527,018

Trade and other payables (9) 7,054,247 2,246,565

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,054,247 2,773,582

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,054,247 2,773,582

NET ASSETS 5,080,405 3,722,534

EQUITY 2018 2017

Current Year Earnings 1,357,871 110,465

Reserves (12) 351,324 351,324

Retained Profit (13) 3,371,210 3,260,745

TOTAL EQUITY 5,080,405 3,722,534
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  NOTE  2018  2017

Receipts from members and customers 11,236,545 8,771,791

Payments to supliers and employees (7,910,175) (7,739,256)

Interest received 117,589 69,699

Net cash flows / (outflows) from operating activities (14b) 3,443,959 1,102,234

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Payments for Home of Golf Project (1,454,608) 0

Payment / Net Proceeds etc re Capital acquistions and Disposals 106,868 (88,353)

Net cash flows / (outflows) from investing activities (1,347,740) (88,353)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  ACTIVITIES 

Movement in Home of Golf Grant balance from Victorian State Government 3,166,303 1,119,056

(Increase or procurement) / Redemption of Financial Assets (3,597,392) (2,045,281)

Net cash flows / (outflows) from financing activities (431,089) (926,225)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 1,665,130 87,656

Cash / (cash deficit) at the beginning of the financial year 812,871 725,215

Cash / (cash deficit) at the end of the financial year (14a) 2,478,001 812,871

GOLF VICTORIA
Financial Report  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared 
in order to satisfy the financial report preparation requirement of 
the Corporations Act 2001. The directors have determined that the 
company is not a reporting entity. 

The financial report is for entity Golf Victoria as an individual entity. Golf 
Victoria is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled 
in Australia. 

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001, and the following applicable Accounting 
Standards: 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements  
AASB 102: Inventories  
AASB 107: Cash Flow Statement  
AASB 110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date  
AASB 116: Property, Plant and Equipment   
AASB 118: Revenue  
AASB 1031: Materiality 

No other applicable Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group 
Interpretations or other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board have been applied. 

The report is also prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic 
costs and does not take into account changing money values or, except 
where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets. 

The following specific accounting policies, which are consistent with 
the previous period unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in the 
preparation of this report: 

a) Inventories: Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Costs are assigned on the first-in first-out basis and 
include direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of 
variable and fixed overhead expenses.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment: Each class of property, plant and 
equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation.  Plant and Equipment - Plant and equipment 
are measured on the cost basis. Depreciation - All assets, excluding 
freehold land and buildings, are depreciated on a straight line basis 
over their useful lives to the company.

c) Investments: Non-current investments are measured on the cost 
basis. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually by 
the directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount 
of these investments. The recoverable amount is assessed from the 
quoted market value for shares in listed companies or the underlying 
net assets for other non-listed corporations. The expected net cash 
flows from investments have not been discounted to their present 
value in determining the recoverable amounts.

d) Employee Benefits: Provisions are made for the company’s liability 
for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to 
balance date. Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year 
together with benefits arising from wages and salaries, annual leave 
and sick leave which will be settled after one year, have been measured 
at the amount expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus 
related on-costs. Other employee benefits payable later than one year 
have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows to be made for those benefits. Contributions are made by 
the company to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as 
expenses when incurred.

e) Cash: For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes 
cash on hand and at call deposits with banks or financial institutions, 
investments in money market instruments maturing within less than 
two months and net bank overdrafts.

f) Revenue: Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis 
taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets. 
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has 
been established. Dividends received from associates and joint venture 
entities are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of 
accounting. Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the 
revenue has been established. All revenue is stated net of the amount 
of goods and services tax (GST).

g) Goods and Services Tax (GST): Revenues, expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 
of the assets or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables 
in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 

h) Programmes, Competitions and Grants: Income and expenditure 
relating to programmes, competitions and grants are matched and 
brought to account at the time the programme or competition is 
conducted. Unspent grant monies are held in Membership and other 
Fees received in Advance.

i) Financial Instruments: Financial assets and liabilities are recognised 
when Golf Victoria becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that Golf 
Victoria commits itself to either purchase or sell the assets. Financial 
instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 
Where the instrument is not classified “at fair value through profit and 
loss” transaction costs have been expensed immediately. Financial 
instruments are subsequently measured at either fair value, amortized 
using the effective interest rate method cost. Fair value represents the 
amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, 
between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted 
prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other 
circumstances other valuation techniques are adopted.

j) Staff Superannuation Fund: Golf Victoria contributes to approved 
superannuation funds on behalf of its employees.
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9. Trade and other payables
Current 2018 2017
Unsecured liabilities

Trade creditors 597,267 276,897

Golf Australia One Golf Transition (2)     218,236 0

Sundry creditors 1,990,018 887,244

Government Funded Home of Golf 
Project - Deferred Income (9a) 4,248,726 1,082,424

TOTAL 7,054,247 2,246,565

11. Equity 2018 2017
Total equity at the beginning of 
financial year

3,722,534 3,612,069

Total changes in equity recognised in 
the income statement

1,357,870 110,465

Total equity as the reporting date 5,080,404 3,722,534

10. Provisions 2018 2017
Employee benefits 0 527,017

7. Financial Assets
Current 2018 2017
Term Deposits 7,407,557 3,810,165

TOTAL 7,407,557 3,810,165

8. Property, plant & equipment 2018 2017
a) Plant and Equipment

At cost 291,049 291,049

Additions 4,245

Disposals (59,402)

Less Accumulated Depreciation (235,892) (210,045)

TOTAL 0 81,004

b) Furniture, fixtures and fittings

At cost 139,460 139,460

Disposals (41,393)

Less Accumulated Depreciation (98,067) (84,722)

TOTAL 0 54,738

c) Motor Vehicles

At cost 204,686 204,686

Less Accumulated Depreciation (99,193) (58,256)

Total 105,493 146,430

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

105,493 282,172

9a) Government Funded Home of Golf Project - 
Deferred Income 

Following the 2014 State Government Election commitment to 
provide $10.0m to fund the construction of a National Home of 
Golf facility, Golf Victoria Ltd (GV) and Sandringham Golf Links 
Management Pty Ltd (SGLM) have developed a joint project 
proposal to develop the Sandringham Golf Course to establish the 
construction of a National Home of Golf. As part of the process GV 
and SGLM have entered a Heads of Agreement relating to the project 
which considers the commitments of both parties with regard to the 

6. Inventory
Current 2018 2017
Stock at lower of cost and NRV 0 106,192

12. Reserves 2018 2017
(a) Vic Open reserve account:

Opening balance 351,324 351,324

Movements during the year 0 0

CLOSING BALANCE 351,324 351,324

project. Golf Australia (GA) and the Professional Golfers Association 
of Australia (PGA) have committed funding to the project and are 
integral to the successful completion of the project. As a result, a 
Letter of Intent has been signed by both GA and PGA outlining their 
respective financial commitments to the project of $837,500 each. 

While the joint project is with SGLM, all Government funding 
agreements are with Golf Victoria. SGLM will enter into a sublease 
with Golf Victoria for the National Home of Golf premises. The 
ultimate holding entity of the developed asset is to be determined. 
The original funding agreement for $10.0m was signed between 
the State Government and Golf Victoria on 27 June 2017. The State 
Government has since committed a further $5.3m to increase the 
scope of the project with final execution of the revised funding 
agreement pending.   

Golf Victoria has already received $5,703,334 over the last four years 
in Grants from the State Government, with a further $4,296,666 to 
be received over the next two years. $1,454,608 has already been 
spent on a combination of project consultancy fees, project proposal 
planning and development and community consultation processes.  

In accordance with AASB 118, Golf Victoria in 2017 had deferred 
the grant revenue from the State Government and reported it in 
the statement of financial position. As the project has now been 
approved and building set to commence this year, $1,454,608 
has been recognised as revenue with the corresponding asset in 
Capital Works in Progress - Home of Golf. $4,248,726 is recognised 
as deferred income being the grant monies not yet spent on the 
development of the asset, and in the future will be recognised as 
revenue in the profit and loss, over the periods of construction.

GOLF VICTORIA
Financial Report 

13. Retained earnings 2018 2017
Retained earnings at the beginning 
of financial year

3,371,210 3,260,745

Net profit/loss attributable to 
member of entity

1,357,870 110,465

Retained earnings at the end of the 
financial year

4,729,080 3,371,210

14. Cash flow information 2018 2017
(a) Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of financial year as 
shown in the Statement of cash flows:

Cash on hand 17

Cash at bank 2,478,001 812,854

2,478,001 812,871

(b) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit from 
ordinary activities after income tax

Profit/ Loss from ordinary activities 1,357,871 110,465

Depreciation 69,811 95,029

Increase/ (Decrease) in staff 
entitlement provisions

(527,018) 70,622

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/ Decrease in receivables 795,724 104,396

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 106,192 31,945

Increase/ (Decrease) in payables 1,641,380 689,777

Net cash inflow/ (outflows) from 
operations 3,443,959 1,102,234

14. Member’s guarantee

The company is limited by guarantee. If the company is wound up, 
the constitution states that each member is required to contribute 
a maximum $10 each towards meeting any outstanding obligations 
of the company. 

15. Related party disclosures

Victorian Golf Foundation: Golf Victoria together with the former 
Women’s Golf Victoria resolved in 1986 to establish the Victorian 
Golf Foundation to aid in the development of golf in Victoria. The 
assets of the Foundation are held by the Victorian Golf Foundation 
Pty Ltd as the custodian trustee.

In 1992 the company resolved to develop a long term funding strategy 
in order to protect the Victorian Open against economic shifts and 
inconsistent sponsorship. The objective is to build and maintain a 
Victorian Open Reserve Fund to provide capital and investment income 
at a sufficient level to insure against the loss of a leading tournament 
sponsor in any year.

3. Revenue 2018 2017
Operating Activities

Interest 117,589 69,699

Member Subscriptions 5,951,486 5,821,337

Magazine Income 374,613 336,515

Victorian Open 2,028,053 1,723,037

Grant Revenue - Home of Golf 1,454,608 0

Grant Revenue - General 547,333 649,642

Other Revenue 84,728 136,863

TOTAL 10,558,410 8,737,093

4. Cash assets 2018 2017
Cash on hand 0 17

Cash at bank 2,478,001 812,854

TOTAL 2,478,001 812,871

5. Trade & other receivables 2018 2017
Current

Trade receivables 598,706 360,200

Other debtors 90,287 1,124,517

TOTAL 688,993 1,484,717

2. Significant Events

During the course of the year, Golf Victoria entered into a One Golf 
Services Agreement with Golf Australia under which Golf Australia 
will effectively assume the operational responsibilities, and certain 
strategic responsibilities, previously undertaken by Golf Victoria. As 
part of that agreement, at 30th September, Golf Victoria transferred 
certain assets and liabilities to Golf Australia at book value and a fee 
equal to 3 months’ of affiliation income was paid to Golf Australia to 
cover operating expenses for the period October to December 2018. 
The result was a net payable to Golf Australia reported as ‘Golf Australia 
One Golf Transition’ on the Balance Sheet and the fee is shown in the 
Profit and Loss as the One Golf Services Fee. Post transition date, Golf 
Victoria received in and paid out some income and expenses on Golf 
Australia’s behalf resulting in a Payable and Receivable balance with 
Golf Australia. 

Golf Victoria will still remain an entity in its own right and retain control 
of its existing assets for the foreseeable future.
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The directors have determined that the company is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose 
financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the 
financial statements.

The directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out herein present fairly the company’s financial position 
as at 31 December 2018 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the 
accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements; and

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

STEPHEN SPARGO  
President

PETER NASH  
Finance Director

10 May 2019

GOLF VICTORIA
Auditor’s Report
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GOLF VICTORIA
Auditor’s Disclaimer 
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DETAILED INCOME & EXPENSE 
STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2018

INCOME 2018 2017

Grant Revenue - General 547,333 649,642

Grant Revenune - Home of Golf 1,454,608 -

Interest Received 117,589 69,699

Magazine Income 374,613 336,515

Membership Subscriptions 5,951,486 5,821,337

Other Income 84,728 136,863

Victorian Open 2,028,053 1,723,037

TOTAL INCOME 10,558,410 8,737,093

GROSS PROFIT 10,558,410 8,737,093

LESS OPERATING EXPENSES 2018 2017

Advertising and Marketing 18,171 64,067

Audit & Accounting Fees 29,527 19,231

Bad debt 14,997 -

Bank charges 24,978 24,768

Coaching and Sports Science 95,165 142,253

Conferences and Exhibitions 62,027 95,637

Contractors 103,382 134,862

Depreciation 69,811 95,029

Equipment 11,639 45,563

General Administration Expenses 77,132 81,255

General Golf Expenses 89,884 125,379

General Occupancy 25,710 27,514

Gifts and Donations 11,909 17,649

Golf Australia Subscriptions (2) 1,877,907 1,746,301

Insurance 25,234 30,896

Leasing Charges 78,581 98,800

Legal Fees 35,383 24,746

Magazines, Periodicals and Journals 415,233 421,491

One Golf Services Fee 1,016,545 -

Payroll Tax 74,348 93,652

Printing and Graphic Design 58,099 54,867

Printing and Stationary 10,413 18,116

Repair and Maintenance 5,873 1,005

Staff training and professional 
development

69,768 43,957

Subscriptions 51,322 55,357

Superannuation 169,914 213,140

Telephone & Internet 167,354 243,140

Travelling Expenses 228,841 303,255

VGF Contribution 84,182 84,182

Victorian Open Expenses 2,123,633 1,734,059

Victorian Open Membership Support 200,000 200,000

Wages and Salaries 1,873,578 2,386,459

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 9,200,539 8,626,629

NET PROFIT 1,357,871 110,465

VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION
Auditor’s Independence Declaration 
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VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION
Auditor’s Report 
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VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION
Auditor’s Disclaimer

TRUSTEES’ DECLARATION 
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Trustees have determined that the Foundation is not a reporting 
entity and that this special purpose financial report should be 
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 
1 to the financial statements.

The Trustees of the Foundation declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out herein present fairly 
the Foundation’s financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its 
performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the 
accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements; 
and

2. in the Trustees’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that 
the Foundation will be able to pay its debts as and when they become 
due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the 
Trustees.

JOHN HOBDAY  
Chair

21 May 2019

VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION
Finance Report 

VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION 
INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2018

INCOME 2018 2017

Revenue from Ordinary Activities 197,978 199,055

TOTAL INCOME 197,978 199,055

GROSS PROFIT 197,978 199,055

LESS OPERATING EXPENSES 

Administration Expenses 13,706 16,991

Other Expenses from Ordinary 
Activities

41,568 88,004

Regional and Metro Development 
Managers

350,000 370,000

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 405,275 474,995

NET PROFIT (207,297) (275,940)

VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION  
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2018

ASSETS 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 87,837 31,503

Cash on deposit 638,821 385,447

Other financial Assets (4) 1,794,921 2,049,635

Receivables (2) 33,890 53,967

TOTAL ASSETS 2,555,470 2,520,553

LIABILITIES 2018 2017

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables (5) 395,058 48,798

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 395,058 48,798

TOTAL LIABILITIES 395,058 48,798

NET ASSETS 2,160,412 2,471,755

EQUITY 2018 2017

Assets Revaluation Reserve (7) 203,078 307,125

Current Year Earnings (207,297) (275,940)

Retained Profits 2,164,630 2,440,570

TOTAL EQUITY (6) 2,160,412 2,471,755

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared 
in order to satisfy the financial report preparation requirements 
of the Trust Deed to prepare a financial report. The trustees have 
determined that the trust is not a reporting entity.

As the trustees have determined that the trust is not a reporting 
entity there is no requirement to apply applicable Accounting 
Standards or other authorising pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board in the preparation and presentation of 
these financial statements.

The financial report is also prepared on an accruals basis and is 
based on historic costs and does not take into account changing 
money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations 
of non-current assets.

The following specific accounting policies, which are consistent with 
the previous period unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in 
the preparation of this financial report:

(a) Income Tax: No provision for income tax has been raised as the 
trust is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997.
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(b) Investments: Non-current investments are initially recorded at 
cost and re-valued according to market value at balance date.

(c) Cash: Cash includes cash on hand and at banks including at call 
deposits with banks.

(d) Trust liabilities and right of Indemnity: The Trustee acts as 
trustee of the Foundation and liabilities have been incurred on 
behalf of that trust in the company’s capacity as corporate trustee. 
Liabilities incurred on behalf of the trust are not recognised in the 
financial statements when it is not probable that the company will 
have to meet any of those trust liabilities from its own resources. 
When it is probable that the company will have to meet some trust 
liabilities a liability for the Deficiency in Trust Right of Indemnity 
is brought to account. Details of the trust liabilities, the offsetting 
right of indemnity, and any deficiency in the right of indemnity are 
disclosed by way of note to the financial statements.

(e) Goods and Services Tax (GST): Revenues, expenses and assets 
are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount 
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 
Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the assets or as part of an item of expense. 
Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position 
are shown inclusive of GST.

During 2018 funds were provided to assist the following: Golf 
club memberships; school club linkage programs for juniors; 
community come and try clinics; District Association junior clinics 
and tournaments; MyGolf promotions in schools; golf in primary and 
secondary school; golf promotion resource materials; and support 
for regional sports academies.

3. VICTORIAN GOLF FOUNDATION
(ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE)

The Victorian Golf Foundation (VGF) was established in 1987. 
Following an initial period of capital building, the trustees in 1995 
commenced making annual allocations and grants to support golf 
development programs and projects conducted by the Victorian 
Golf Association, one of the predecessor organisations of Golf 
Victoria, District Golf Associations, affiliated golf clubs and allied 
organisations. The process of annual allocations and grants is 
ongoing and opportunity is provided each year for interested clubs 
and organisations to apply for funding support. Since 1995 a total 
of approximately $5.5 million has been expended by the VGF to 
benefit Victorian golf.

A VGF benefactor program was launched in 1997. Under this 
program the opportunity exists for any person or group interested 
in golf to make single or ongoing donations to assist in further 
building the foundation’s capital fund. Donations are tax 
deductible as a result of the foundation being registered as an 
approved project of the Australian Sports Foundation.

2. RECEIVABLES
Current 2018 2017
Trade debtors 0 16,533

GST receivable 33,890 37,434

TOTAL 33,890 53,967

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Current 2018 2017
Other financial assets 1,573,614 1,724,281

Other financial assets- Increase in 
market value

221,307 325,354

TOTAL 1,794,921 2,049,635

5. TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
Current 2018 2017
Unsecured liabilities

Trade creditors 395,058 48,798

TOTAL 395,058 48,798

6. Equity 2018 2017
Total equity at the beginning of 
financial year

2,164,630 2,440,570

Total changes in equity recognised in 
the income statement

(207,297) (275,940)

Assets revaluation reserve 203,078 307,125

Total equity as the reporting date 2,160,411 2,471,755

7. Reserves
Asset Revaluation reserve account 2018 2017
Opening balance 307,125 228,577

Movements during the year (104,047) 78,548

CLOSING BALANCE 203,078 307,125

Trade creditors includes $391,600 for Golf Victoria

1993 D.A. Bransdon

1994 C.A. Spence

1995 C.A. Spence

1996 C.B. Percy

1997 G.C. Ogilvy

1998 A. Baddeley

1999 M. Fraser

2000 M. Cocking

2001 C.Scott

2002 L.Hickmott

2003 G. Flint

2004 S. Jones

2005 J. Morrison

2006 A. Pike

2007 L. Lyle

2008 L. Bleumink

2009 K. Pratt

2010 J. Wilson

2011 N. Holman

2012 T. MacDonald

2013 Z. Murray

2014 C. Davis

2015 C. John

2016 D. Perry

2017. D Micheluzzi

2018 A. Lautee

1948 P. W. Thomson

1949 D.W. Bachli

1950 D.W. Bachli

1951 W.A. Edgar

1952 E.G. Routley

1953 D.W. Bachli

1954 R.L. Bull

1955 H. Mitchell

1956 T.L. Crow

1957 B.W. West

1958 E.G. Routley

1959 E.G. Routley

1960 E.G. Routley

1961 N.W. Titheridge

1962 N.W. Titheridge

1963 E.G. Routley

1964 E.F. Wishart

1965 H.J. McGain

1966 E.G. Routley

1967 D.J. Reiter

1968 J.D. Lindsay

1969 K.W. Hartley

1970 J.D. Lindsay

1971 M.F. Cahill

1972 M.F. Cahill

1973 M.F. Cahill

1974 D.J. Reiter

1975 R.L. Wines

1976 A.J. Reiter

1977 M.A. Clayton

1978 P.J. Sweeney

1979 R.J. Jenner

1980 D.J. Cole

1981 M.A. Clayton

1982 A.L. Lehner

1983 J.D. Lindsay

1984 D.K. Briggs

1985 M.C. Sammells

1986 P.A. Moloney

1987 B.S. Hughes

1988 B.S. Hughes

1989 S.H. McCraw

1990 R.M. Allenby

1991 S.P. Appleby

1992 A.L. Henwood

MEN’S AMATUER 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1899 J.D. Howden

1900 J.D. Howden

1901 W.J.C. Riddell

1902 H. Macneil

1903 W.J.C Riddell

1904 Hon. M. Scott

1905 Hon. M. Scott

1906 W.J.C. Riddell

1907 Hon. M. Scott

1908 Hon. M. Scott

1909 Hon. M. Scott

1910 Hon. M. Scott

1911 A.L. Lempriere

1912 F.G. Murdock

1913 G. Le R. Burnham

1914 E.J. Quirk

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 Ivo Whitton

1920 Ivo Whitton

1921 C.H. Fawcett

1922 Ivo Whitton

1923 Ivo Whitton

1924 Ivo Whitton

1925 A. Russell

1926 A.W. Jackson

1927 W.A. Edgar

1928 W.J. Fowler

1929 S. Morpeth

1930 M.J. Ryan

1931 H.L. Williams

1932 M.J. Ryan

1933 A.W. Jackson

1934 H.L. Williams

1935 H.L. Williams

1936 H.L. Williams

1937 W.A. Higgins

1938 W.A. Edgar

1939 H.L. Williams

1940 Not played

1945 during war

1946 R.S. Brown

1947 H.R. Payne

GOLF VICTORIA
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WOMEN’S AMATUER 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1894 Eveline McKenzie

1895 Eveline McKenzie

1896 Eveline McKenzie

1897 Jean Davie

1898 Eveline McKenzie

1899 Louise Shaw

1900 Julia Anderson

1901 Edith Raleigh

1902 Nellie De Little

1903 Nellie De Little

1904 Clare Murphy

1905 Clare Murphy

1906 Nellie De Little

1907 Nellie Gatehouse

1908 Euphie Bell

1909 Nellie Gatehouse

1910 Nellie Gatehouse

1911 Violet Binnie

1912 Edith Raleigh

1913 Violet Binnie

1914 Gladys Hay

1915 Gladys Hay

1919 Caroline Austin

1920 Gladys Hay

1921 Gladys Hay

1922 Cecily Lascelles

1923 Alice McKay

1924 Alice McKay

1925 Mona MacLeod

1926 Mona MacLeod

1927 Nellie Gatehouse

1928 Mona MacLeod

1929 Susie Tolhurst

1930 Susie Tolhurst

1931 Susie Tolhurst

1932 Mona MacLeod

1933 Mona MacLeod

1934 Shirley Tolhurst

1935 Susie Morpeth

1936 Susie Morpeth

1937 Nell Hutton

1938 Meg Evans

1939 Joan Lewis

1946 Joan Fisher

1947 Joan Fisher

1948 Joan Fisher

1949 Burtta Cheney

1950 Meg Evans

1951 Maxine Bishop

1952 Maxine Bishop

1953 Esther Gaillie

1954 Maxine Bishop

1955 Veronica Anstee

1956 Burtta Cheney

1957 Margaret Masters

1958 Burtta Cheney

1959 Margaret Masters

1960 Joan Fisher

1961 Margaret Masters

1962 Margaret Masters

1963 Margaret Masters

1964 Joan Fisher
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1965 Joan Fisher

1966 Betinne Burgess

1967 Joan Fisher

1968 Barbara Coulson

1969 Robyn Dummett

1970 Robyn Dummett

1971 Sandra Williams

1972 Sandra McCaw

1973 Lindy Goggin

1974 Jane Lock

1975 Barbara Dillon

1976 Lindy Goggin

1977 Louise Hawking

1978 Jane Lock

1979 Jane Crafter

1980 Lindy Goggin

1981 Louise Briers

1982 Sandra McCaw

1983 Sue Tonkin

1984 Jan Dale

1985 Louise Briers

1986 Lindy Goggin

1987 Diane Pavich

1988 Debbie Sharp

1989 Wendy Doolan

1990 Siobhan Muldowney

1991 Helen Kight

1992 Allison Wheelhouse

1993 Ann Johnston

1994 Debbie Sharp

1995 Stacey Doggett

1996 Torie O’Connor

1997 Natalie Parkinson

1998 Natalie Parkinson

1999 Cherie Byrnes

2000 Nadine Taylor

2001 Vicky Uwland

2002 Melanie Holmes-Smith

2003 Misun Cho

2004 Lisa Jean

2005 Emma Bennett

2006 Stacey Keating

2007 Jesscia Parker

2008 Rebecca Flood

2009 Alison Whittaker

1991 R.M. Allenby (Vic) (A)

1992 I.E. Stanley (Vic)

1993 L.J. Parsons (NSW)

1994 P. Burke (USA)

1995 S.Leaney (WA)

1996 Not Played

1997 S. Leaney (WA)

1998 B. King (WA)

1999 K. Druce (Qld)

2000 B. Lamb (Vic) (A)

2001 S. Laycock (Vic)

2002 A. Stolz (NSW)

2003 Not Played

2004 G. Paddison (NZL)

2005 K. Barnes (Qld)

2006 D. Diaz (Vic)

2007 K. Felton (Vic)

2008 Not Played

2009 A. Hall (Vic)

2010 J. Norris (Vic)

2011 P. Sheehan (NSW)

2012 S. Arnold (NSW)

2013 M. Giles (NSW)

2014 M. Griffin (VIC)

2015 R. Green (VIC)

2016 M. Long (NZL) 

2017 D. Papadatos (NSW)

2018 S. Hawkes (TAS)

2010 Stacey Keating

2011 Charlotte Thomas

2012 Su-Hyun Oh

2013 Su-Hyun Oh

2014 Shelly Shin

2015 Hannah Green

2016 Alizza Hetherington

2017 Stephanie Bunque

2018 Maddison Hinson-Tolchard

MEN’S OPEN 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1957 H.H.A. Pickworth (Vic)

1958 P.W. Thomson (Vic)

1959 G. Player (Sth Africa)

1960 J. Harris (Vic)

1961 A.A. Murray (NSW)

1962 B.W. Devlin (NSW)

1963 B.W. Devlin (NSW)

1964 F. Phillips (NSW)

1965 A.A. Murray (NSW)

1966 F. Phillips (NSW)

1967 K.D. Nagle (NSW)

1968 P.W. Thomson (Vic)

1969 K.D. Nagle (NSW)

1970 D. Graham (NSW)

1971 G.B. Wolstenholme (Vic)

1972 W.J. Godfrey (NZ)

1973 P.W. Thomson (Vic)

1974 J.C. Davis (Vic)

1975 S.P. Ginn (Vic)

1976 G.B. Wolstenholme (Vic)

1977 G.L. Parslow (Vic)

1978 G.B. Wolstenholme (Vic)

1979 R.M. Davis (NSW)

1980 G.B. Wolstenholme (Vic)

1981 E.W. Dunk (NSW)

1982 M.A. Clayton (Vic)

1983 R.A. Shearer (Vic)

1984 G.J. Norman (QLD)

1985 I.M. Baker-Finch (QLD)

1986 O.D. Moore (QLD)

1987 R.J. Mackay (WA)

1988 J.L. Benepe (USA)

1989 M.A. Clayton (Vic)

1990 Not played

WOMEN’S OPEN 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1988 Helen Hopkins (WA)

1989 Susan Tonkin (SA)

1990 Dale Reid (Scot)

1991 Jennifer Wyatt (Can)

1992 Wendy Doolan (NSW)

2012 Joanna Klatten (Fra)

2013 Stacey Keating (VIC)

2014 Minjee Lee (WA) (A)

2015 Marianne Skarpnord (Nor)

2016 Georgia Hall (Eng)

2017 Melissa Reid (Eng)

2018 Minjee Lee (WA)

MEN’S SENIOR 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1995 B. McLure

1996 K.W. Kilburn

1997 T. Wood

1998 D. Perry

1999 D. Perry

2000 D. Perry

2001 M. Jackson

2002 P. Billings

2003 B. Banks

2004 B. Banks

2005 B. Sams

2006 B. Banks

2007 B. Sams

2008 S. Albinski

2009 C. Tatt

2010 S. Albinski

2011 S. Albinski

2012 P. King

2013 C. Tatt

2014 G. Claney

2015 G. Ellis

2016 G. Rhodes

2017 D. Francis

2018 G. Charnley

WOMEN’S SENIOR 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1931 F.W. Fairbairn

1932 F.W. Fairbairn

1933 E. Ogle-Moore

1934 S.A. Cheney

1935 E. Ogle-Moore

1936 Austin Gatehouse

1937 L.R. Barker-woden

1938 H.L. Serrell

1939 Newton Lees

1940 Not Played

1941 Not Played

1942 Not Played

1943 Not Played

1944 Not Played

1945 Not Played

1946 Not Played

1947 E. Vernon
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1948 E. Vernon

1949 E. Vernon

1950 E. Vernon

1951 E. Vernon

1952 J.P. Walker

1953 A. W. Geddes

1954 E.L. Stewart

1955 E.L. Stewart

1956 J. McCann

1957 M. Munster

1958 C.L. Evans

1959 F.H. Wagstaff

1960 J. McCann

1961 M. Minster

1962 H.W. Geddes

1963 N.H. Didsteny

1964 N.H. Didsteny

1965 G. Whitehead

1966 J.J. Dwyer

1967 J.J. Dwyer

1968 J.J. Dwyer

1969 E. Vernon

1970 E. Vernon

1971 H. Thomas

1972 J. Fitcher

1973 H. J. Thomas

1974 J. Fisher

1975 J. Fisher

1976 J. Fisher

1977 J. Fisher

1978 H.J. Thomas

1979 B. Baufield

1980 I. Prunty

1981 B. Burgess

1982 B. Burgess 

1983 E. Gashler

1984 J. Clayton

1985 J. Clayton

1986 D. Martin

1987 V. Hamilton

1988 D. Sellers

1989 D. Martin

1990 J. Smith

1991 J. Smith

1992 M. Murphy

1993 J. Cassidy

1994 M. Murphy

1995 M. Murphy

1996 M. Murphy

1997 E. Jones

1998 L. Shelton

1999 E. Jones

2000 E. Jones

2001 E. Jones

2002 E. Jones

2003 V. Ferguson

2004 F. Vizard

2005 J. Kruger

2006 J. Kruger

2007 J Kruger

2008 J. Kruger

2009 Joanna Mason

2010 Ros Fisher

2011 Heather Harley

2012 Jill Blenkey

2013 Jenny McRae

2014 Helen Pascoe

2015 Nikki Haines

2016 Judy Kruger

2017 Helen Pascoe

2018 Kim Burke

MEN’S MID-AMATEUR 
CHAMPIONSHIP
2005  R. Macafee

2006  J. Beveridge

2007  P. Blake

2008  P. Woodward

2009  M. Oldham

2010 B. Crosby

2011 M. McManus

2012 J. Perry

2013 D. Ong

2014 M. Burgess

2015 M. Boulton

2016 D. Hall

2017 G. Wilson

2018 M. Boulton

WOMEN’S MID-AMATEUR 
CHAMPIONSHIP
2011 S. Semmens

2012 H. Pascoe

2013 L. Holmquest

2014 B. Osborne

2015 S. Wooster

2016 S. Wooster

2017 S. Wooster

2018 S. Wooster

BOYS’ CHAMPIONSHIP
1930 R. Smith

1931 J.M. Relph

1932 A.V. Rae

1933 C. Terdich

1934 B. Mogg

1935 D.P. Doughton

1936 D.H. Smith

1937 W.G. Campbell

1938 J.R. Hood

1939 N.F. Robinson

1940 Not played

1945 during war

1947 B.W. West

1948 K. MacPherson

1949 D.N. McDougall

1950 K.W. Hartley

1951 J.J. Giles

1952 J.P. Kellaway

1953 A.A. Thomson

1954 J. Munnings (Tas)

1955 W. Kuhnell

1956 W. Kuhnell

1957 R.L. Judd

1958 J.R. Maher

1959 J.R. Maher

1960 M. Downie (NSW)

1961 W.J. Britten

1962 G. Spinks

1963 R.A. Shearer

1964 D. Wallace

1965 G. Scott

1966 I.E. Stanley

1967 K. O’Meara

1968 M.J. Sherriff

1969 G. Hoskins

1970 T. J. McDonald

1971 T. Vogelzang

1972 C.R. Boyer

1973 C.R. Boyer

1974 J.A. Kelly

1975 J.A. Kelly

1976 J.A. Kelly

1977 M.A. Chadwick

1978 D.J. Cole

1979 G. Ellery

1980 M.A. Granger

1981 P.L. Murphy

1982 P.R. Burgoine

1983 P.L. Murphy

1984 M.D. Dart

1985 P.J. Bruce

1986 D.A. Kitchin

1987 E. Walters

1988 C.A. Haase

1989 P.J. Roper

1990 R.J. Meadows

1991 S.D. Allan

1992 B.J. Meadows

1993 B.P. Lamb

1994 J.R. McCully

1995 D.S. Gaunt

1996 D.S. Gaunt

1997 D. Walker

1998 N. Lane

1999 T. Little

2000 D. Clemmens

2001 M. Leishman

2002 L. Veith

2003 S. Page

2004 C. Bolt

2005 D. Beckmann

2006 B. Papangelou

2007 B. Macpherson

2008 T. Sharpe

2009 T. Sinnott

2010 T. Fent

2011 D. Loypur

2012 T. Jung

2013 F. Droop
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2014 B. Collyer

2015 C. John

2016 K. Ciupek

2017 K. Kobori

2018 K. Kobori

GIRLS CHAMPIONSHIP
1925 Leslie Bailey

1926 Shirley Tolhurst

1927 Patricia Moore

1928 Leslie Bailey

1929 Betty Harper

1930 Betty Harper

1931 Conda Row

1932 Kathleen Donovan

1933 Mary Devine

1934 Mary Devine

1935 Burtta Cheney

1936 Pat Heyward

1937 Sue Fincham

1938 Betty Brookshaw

1939 Eileen O’Brien

1947 Janette Wellard

1948 Janette Wellard

1949 Janette Wellard

1950 Janette Wellard

1951 Margaret Masters

1952 Margaret Masters

1953 Margaret Masters

1954 Margaret Masters

1955 Mrs G. Stanley

1956 Jan Nugent

1957 Margaret Cox

1958 Simone Morpeth

1959 Barbara Coulson

1960 Dawn Dehnert

1961 Sue Nagel

1962 Dawn Delment

1963 Lorraine Thomas

1964 Jillian Smith

1965 Jan Dunlop

1966 Naida Glen

1967 Margaret Hayes

1968 Margaret Hayes

1969 Lindy Jennings

1970 Sandra Williams

1971 Jane Lock

1972 Jane Lock

1973 Jane Lock

1974 Jane Lock

1975 Jane Lock

1976 Glenda Prior

1977 Miss L. Hawking

1978 Penny Edmunds

1979 Sandra McKenzie

1980 Sherrin Calbraith

1981 Susan Smith

1982 Diane Pavich

1983 Lisa Ipkendanz

1984 Libby Wilson

1985 Donna Faneco

1986 Nicole Lowien

1987 Mardi Lunn

1988 Kim Gregg

1989 Nadene Hall

1990 Terri McKinnon

1991 Rachel Hetherington

1992 Michelle Scerri

1993 Colleen Cook

1994 Miss S. Dogget

1995 Melissa Faser

1996 Miss K. Farrugia

1997 Miss G. Park

1998 Miss N. Campbell

1999 Anna Rawson

2000 Tara Lagan

2001 Tanya Fleming

2002 Misun Cho

2003 Misun Cho

2004 Inhong Lim

2005 Clare Choi

2006 Grace Lennon

2007 Grace Lennon

2008 Su-Hyun Oh

2009 Tilly Poulsen

2010 Su-Hyun Oh

2011 Rio Watanabe

2012 Julienne Soo

2013 Celina Yuan

2014 Soo Bin Park

2015 Celina Yuan

2016 Alizza Hetherington

2017 Bella Kil

2018 Sophie Yip

MEN’S COUNTRY 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1924 Dr L.W. Craig

1925 Dr L.W. Craig

1926 O.W. Edgar

1927 L.W. Thompson

1928 W.G. Darley

1929 J.F. Purcell

1930 W.R. Armstrong

1931 A.B. Lyon

1932 P.G. Gleeson

1933 J.P. McCarthy

1934 A.S. Bradshaw

1935 B.R. Boon

1936 P.G. Gleeson

1937 E.A. Fisher

1938 E.A. Fisher

1939 F. Morecroft

1940 Not played

1945 during war

1946 D.W. Bachli

1947 F. Morecroft

1948 F. Meadows

1949 M. Nunn

1950 J.N. Pickering

1951 M. Nunn

1952 F. Morecroft

1953 B.E. Clay

1954 B.E. Clay

1955 E.A. Lucas

1956 A.S. Ross

1957 B.E. Clay

1958 N.W. Titheridge

1959 I.F. Huntley

1960 A. Ellis

1961 W. Kellow

1962 A. Ellis

1963 K. Pritchard

1964 C.R. Hutchins

1965 J. Briody

1966 J. Kincaid

1967 G. Kroger

1968 J.F. Bannan

1969 R. Clover

1970 P. Welsford

1971 R.J. Jenner

1972 D.C. Perry

1973 C.R. Boyer

1974 A.K. Sweeten

1975 K.D. Boyd

1976 D.C. Perry

1977 P. Shiell

1978 C. Tatt

1979 L. Gibson

1980 G.J. Craig

1981 M. Offi cer

1982 C. Tatt

1983 J. Southwell

1984 K.G. Norrey

1985 B. Wilson

1986 D.J. Harding

1987 C. Tatt

1988 D. Eckhardt

1989 G. Tonkin

1990 D.J. Bernasconi

1991 S.D. Allan

1992 C. A. Haase

1993 C. Tatt

1994 M.J. Allen

1995 M. Skinner

1996 S. Symons

1997 S. Symons

1998 M. Williamson

1999 P. O’Dwyer

2000 T. Vogel

2001 J. Abbott

2002 C. Scott

2003 J. Lyle

2004 J. Lyle

2005 B. Dunn

2006 S. Symons

2007 K. Mueck

2008 D. Lawson

2009 A. Umbers

2010 D. Lawson

2011 C. Boucher

2012 R. Bourke

GOLF VICTORIA
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2013 L. Herbert

2014 Z. Murray

2015 K. Michel

2016 K. Michel

2017 C. Perry

2018 M. Lever

WOMEN’S COUNTRY 
CHAMPIONSHIP
1910 E. Raleigh

1911 G. Hay

1912 P. Retallack

1913 N.S. Brown

1914 James

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 J. Robertson

1920 R. Forbes

1921 I.L Kininmonth

1922 I.L Kininmonth

1923 R.A. Affleck

1924 A. McKay

1925 A. McKay

1926 V.M. Betheras

1927 G Adams

1928 V.M. Betheras

1929 W.P. Heath

1930 E. Watson

1931 A.W. Murray

1932 R. McKenzie

1933 E. Watson

1934 O.H. Coltman

1935 R. McKenzie

1936 O.H. Coltman

1937 E.B. Ramsay

1938 R. McKenzie

1939  Not played 

1945 during war

1946 R. McKenzie

1947 M.M. Bailey

1948 M.M. Bailey

1949 Astrid Holm

1950 J.J. Dwyer

1951 J.J. Dwyer

1952 O.H. Coltman

1953 Astrid Holm

1954 Astrid Holm

1955 J.J. Dwyer

1956 W.L Hebb

1957 J.J. Dwyer

1958 J.J. Dwyer

1959 J.J. Dwyer

1960 J.J. Dwyer

1961 Dawn Dehnert

1962 W. Hebb

1963 J. Dwyer

1964 Gena Roughead

1965 H. McArthur

1966 J. Dwyer

1967 A. Pusmucans

1968 J. O’Rourke

1969 L. Stanley

1970 J. Fisher

1971 A. Pusmucans

1972 P. Macdonald

1973 L. Gemmill

1974 L. Gemmill

1975 S. Gee

1976 J. Dunlop

1977 P. Edmunds

1978 G. Prior

1979 J. Dunlop

1980 G. Ivill

1981 G. Ivill

1982 J. Chapman

1983 G. Ivill

1984 H. Greenwood

1985 C. Clout

1986 E. Wilson

1987 H. Kight

1988 H. Kight

1989 C. Leaney

1990 A. Johnston

1991 A. Johnston

1992 A. Johnston

1993 A. Johnston

1994 A. Johnston

1995 A. Johnston

1996 A. Adams

1997 J. Conder

1998 S. Love

1999 V. Uwland

2000 S. Love

2001 S. Love

2002 M Clifford

2003 Liz Cussen

2004 Brooke Mangan

2005 Angela Tatt

2006 Jody Fleming

2007 Liz Cussen

2008 Judy Langford

2009 Breanna Elliott

2010 Sue Wooster

2011 Sue Wooster

2012 Judy Langford

2013 Bianca Ling

2014 Alexandra Hilliard

2015 Jessica Pickwick

2016 Casey Wild

2017 Casey Wild

2018 Steffanie Vogel

MEN’S CHAMPION OF 
CHAMPIONS
1954 D.W. Bachli

1955 E.G. Routley

1956 W.A. Higgins

1957 W.A. Higgins

1958 E.G. Routley

1959 D.W. Bachli

1960 J.R. Hood

1961 E.G. Routley

1962 A.L. Toe

1963 D.W. Bachli

1964 L.H. O’Shea

1965 M. Guille

1966 W.J. Britten

1967 R.V. Cowan

1968 R.L. Judd

1969 G.R. Hicks

1970 R.A. Shearer

1971 M.F. Cahill

1972 R. Williamson

1973 R.J. Jenner

1974 T.A. Limon

1975 T. Gilmore

1976 W. Loy

1977 D.J. Reiter

1978 C. Tatt

1979 D.J. Cole

1980 M.A. Clayton

1981 P.J. Sweeney

1982 K.W. Hartley

1983 D.K. Briggs

1984 P.D. Bleazby

1985 L. Watts

1986 C.E. Howell

1987 C. Tatt

1988 D. Eckhardt

1989 D.A. Armstrong

1990 J.J. Beveridge

1991 D.A. Armstrong
R.G. Green

1992 J.R. McCallum

1993 D.G.R. Francis

1994 M.D. McGrath

1995 S.A. Leong

1996 R.W. Mohamed

1997 R. Haywood

1998 M. Grant

1999 R. Clydesdale

2000 J. Maxwell

2001 C. Scott

2002 A. Porker

2003 L. Hickmott

2004 A. Martin

2005 B. Dunn

2006 M. Griffin

2007 D. Beckmann

2008 J Jeong

2009 K. Pratt

2010 R. McCarthy

2011 G. Drakeford

2012 N. Holman

2013 A. Schonewille

2014 D. Micheluzzi

2015 Z. Murray

2016 M. Sanchez

2017 D. Micheluzzi

2018 A. Lautee
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WOMEN’S CHAMPION OF 
CHAMPIONS
1929 Susie Tolhurst

1930 Susie Tolhurst

1931 Susie Tolhurst

1932 Mrs Austin Gatehouse

1933 Mona MacLeod

1934 Mrs S. Morpeth

1935 Betty Kernot

1936 Betty Kernot

1937 Joan Lewis

1938 Emily Hirst

1946 L.R. Duncan

1947 L.R. Duncan

1948 Nell Smithett

1949 Burtta Cheney

1950 Mona MacLeod

1951 Burtta Cheney

1952 Joan Fisher

1953 Joan Fisher

1954 J. Anstee

1955 Margaret Masters

1956 Joan Fisher

1957 Burtta Cheney

1958 W. Hebb

1959 Joan Fisher

1960 M. Mair

1961 B. Coulson

1962 B. Coulson

1963 B. Coulson

1964 B. Coulson

1965 Joan Fisher

1966 B. Coulson

1967 Joan Fisher

1968 Joan Fisher

1969 S. Williams

1970 Joan Fisher

1971 I. Dummett

1972 J. Dunlop

1973 Jane Lock

1974 L. Gemmill

1975 Barbara Dillon

1976 Barbara Dillon

1977 Sandra McCaw

1978 Sandra McCaw

1979 Sandra McCaw

1980 Louise Briers

1981 P. Graeber

1982 Louise Briers

1983 Louise Briers

1984 Helen Greenwood

1985 Sandra McCaw

1986 C. Clout

1987 Nadine Hall

1988 P. Graeber

1989 C. Beuermann

1990 J. Kennedy

1991 A. Felmingham

1992 A. Johnston

1993 A. Johnston

1994 Terri  McKinnon

1995 Tanya Holl

1996 C. Carlos

1997 Janette Borgolotto

1998 Helen Gubbels

1999 Tamara Hyett

2000 M. Tricks

2001 Emma Bennett

2002 Melanie Holmes-Smith

2003 Jody Fleming

2004 Inhong Lim

2005 Sarah Nicholson

2006 Jody Fleming

2007 Elissa Orr

2008 Elissa Orr

2009 Breanna Elliott

2010 Breanna Elliott

2011 Rio Watanabe

2012 Rio Watanabe

2013 Bianca Ling

2014 Bianca Ling

2015 Jessica Pickwick

2016 Ashleigh Hall

2017 Kono Matsumoto

2018 Jeneath Wong

MEN’S AMATEUR 
FOURSOMES
CHAMPIONSHIP
1903 A.R. Lemprier

& R. Greene

1904 Hon M. Scott
& H.L. Hylan

1905 Hon. M. Scott
& W.J.C. Riddell

1906 Hon. M. Scott
& W.J.C. Riddell

1907 W.J.C. Riddell
& N.E. Brookes

1908 C. Pearce & B. Pearce

1909 Hon. M. Scott
& W.J.C. Riddell

1910 A.R. Lempriere
& W. Meader

1911 F.G. Murdock
& C.E. Dodge

1912 G.C. Morrison
& D.G. Morrison

1913 G.C. Morrison
& D.G. Morrison

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 T.F. Rutledge
& Alex Russell

1920 N.E. Brookes
& Ivo Whitton

1921 Bruce Pearce
& T.F. Rutledge

1922 Alex Russell
& C.H. Fawcett

1923 Ivo Whitton
& E.J. Quirk

1922 N.E. Lockart
& F.E. Headlam

1925 Alex Russell
& C.H. Fawcett

1926 Alex Russell
& C.H. Fawcett

1927 A.W. Jackson 
& J.C. Sharp

1928 M.J. Ryan 
& B.N. Strachan

1929 W.J. Fowler
& K.S. Withers

1930 F.L.Bulte
& W.A. Edgar

1931 H.L. Williams
& R. Harris

1932 C.H. Fawcett
& W.C Schlapp

1933 M.J. Ryan
& S. Morpeth

1934 M.J. Ryan & Ivo Whitton

1935 H.L. Williams 
& H.R. Payne

1936 M.J. Ryan & Ivo Whitton

1937 A.J. King & L.G. Jackson

1938 A.W. Jackson  
& W.A. Edgar

1939 H.L. Williams
& A.V. Rae

1940 Not played

1945 during war

1946 W.A. Edgar & F.W. Gluth

1947 R.S. Brown & D.W. Bachli

1948 D.W. Bachli
& R.S. Brown

1949 D.W. Bachli
& H. Mitchell

1950 J. Greening & G. Wilson

1951 J.D. Rankin 
& W.A. Higgins

1952 W.H. Richardson 
& R.L. Bull

1953 F.W. Gluth & W.A. Edgar

1954 W.H. Richardson
& R.L. Bull

1955 D.G. Joubert
& R.L. Wartman

1956 T.L. Crow & B.W. West

1957 H.W. Hattersley
& W.A. Edgar

1958 J.W. O’Connell
& R.P. Williamson

1959 K. MacPherson 
& E.G. Routley

1960 L.H. O’Shea  
& R.C. O’Shea

1961 K. MacPherson  
& E.G. Routley

1962 D.W. Bachli & T.L. Crow

1963 L.H. O’Shea  
& R.C. O’Shea

1964 K.W. Hartley & R.L. Judd

1965 W.J. Britten
& K.L. Donohoe

1966 B. Coleman & D. Wallace

1967 M. O’Shea  
& R.A. Shearer

GOLF VICTORIA
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1968 W.J. Britten  
& E.G. Routley

1969 W.J. Britten
& E.G. Routley

1970 K.W. Kilburn  
& G.R. Hicks

1971 W.J. Britten
and E.G. Routley

1972 A. Cox & D. Redman

1973 A. Meikle & D.C. Perry

1974 K.W. Kilburn
& P.J. Sweeney

1975 T. Gilmore & H. McGain

1976 D.C. Perry & J. Webb

1977 M. Anderson 
& A. Graham

1978 R.J. Jenner & C. Tatt

1979 R.W. Castles  
& W. Colllins

1980 J.F. Carter & G.R. Hicks

1981 J.F. Carter & G.R. Hicks

1982 P. Bray & J.L. Smith

1983 J. Kirby & D.A. Smith

1984 R.J. Jenner & J. Kirby

1985 J.F. Carter 
& G.R. Sweeney

1986 J.F. Carter
& G.R. Sweeney

1987 M.C. Sammells
& A. La Brooy

1988 B.S. Hughes
& D.J. Harding

1989 J.M. Wade  
& D.J. Harding

1990 D. Carroll & E. Walters

1991 R. Green
& J.J. Beveridge

1992 D.A. Armstrong
& S.P. Appleby

1993 G.L. Vearing
& J.R.McCallum

1994 D.A. Bransdon
& B.M. Jones

1995 S.A.Allan & G.L.Quinlan

1996 A. Getson  
& A.R. Tschudin

1997 P. Skinner & G. Beckett

1998 M. Joyce & B. Meyers

1999 J. Wallis & M. Cocking

2000 T. Wise & J. Sutherland

2001 J. Nitties & A.Price

2002 D. Smith & J. Whittal

2003 D. Walker & K. Streat

2004 A. Tampion & A. Martin

2005 A. Tampion
& J. Abbott

2006 Q. Howe & R. Caracella

2007 J. Loomes & D. Ong

2008 T Prowse &  M Moore

2009 B. McPherson
&  A. Umbers

2010 R. Woodward 
&  P. Woodward

2011 J. McMillan 
&  T. Power Horan

2012 R. Bourke
&  G. Drakeford

2013 J. Bannan & C. Bennett

2014 B. McGill & D. Micheluzzi

2015 K. Michel & C. Tomlinson

2016 A. Lautee & K. Ciupek

2017 S. Klain & T. Tatt

2018 G. Worrall & A. Didone

WOMEN’S FOURSOMES
CHAMPIONSHIP
1950 J.P. Blake & E. Lucas

1951 M. Bishop & B. Cheney

1952 M. Bishop & B. Cheney

1953 M. Mair & B. Cheney 

1954 J.D. Fisher & B. Cheney

1955
 

P. Borthwick  
& M. Masters 

1956 J. Nugent & M. Munster

1957 B. Cheney & J. Fisher

1958 L.R. Rees & M. Gilding

1959 J. Fisher & G. Windsor

1960 N.R. Law & M. Masters 

1961 M Masters & N. Law

1962 B. Cheney & J. Fisher

1963 B. Cheney & J. Fisher

1964 B. Cheney & J. Fisher

1965
 

R. Thomas
& J. Greenwood

1966
 

J. Fisher  
& P MacDonald

1967
 

J. Fisher  
& P MacDonald

1968
 

B. Coulson  
& S. Williams

1969
 

B. Coulson  
& S. Williams

1970
 

I. Dummett  
& L. Jennings

1971 I. Dummett & P. Palz

1972 I. Dummett & P. Palz

1973
 

J. Lock
& J. Fitzhandinge

1974 P MacDonald & J. Lock

1975 L. Germell & N. Howe

1976 J. Law & S. McCaw

1977 H. Pennzel & P. Howe

1978 J. Crafter & P. Edmunds

1979 L. Briers & D. Rix

1980 L. Briers & D. Rix

1981 S. Smith & D. Pavich

1982 L. Briers & S. McCaw

1983 L. Briers & S. McCaw

1984 L. Briers & S. McCaw

1985
 

H. Greenwood  
& C. Darby

1986 F. Rixon & A. Joyce

1987 B. Dillon & K. MacDonald

1988 B. Dillon & K. MacDonald

1989
 

R. MacDonald
& S. Johnstone

1990
 

S. Muldowney  
& D. Young

1991 D. Sharp & J. Carmody

1992
 

J. McCafferty 
& C. Maggio

1993
 

L. Carrington
& A. Johnston

1994
 

S. Williams  
& K. MacIntosh

1995 H. Gubbels & S. McClure

1996
 

R. Nash  
& A. Wheelhouse

1997
 

L. Ferguson  
& J. Swanson

1998 T. Hyett & R. Nash

1999 N. Campbell & C. Butler

2000
 

J. Borgolotto
& J. Fletcher

2001 R. Fry & D. Lacey

2002 K. Forbes & H. Wilkinson

2003
 

C. Thompson  
& N. Garrett

2004 C. Haddon & C. Choi

2005 K. Combes & E. Bennett

2006 K. Combes & E. Bennett

2007 J. Parker & T. Fuller

2008 S. Brennan & C. Choi

TIE S. King & J. Bozanic

2009 J. Brideson & T. Poulsen

 2010 L. Sinclair & J. Parker

2011 S.H. Oh & B. Ling

2012 S.H. Oh & J. Charlton

2013 B. Ling & J. Wyllie

2014 S. Bunque & O. Kline

2015 A. Hetherington  
& Z. Woodbridge

2016 C. Wild & M. Peters

2017 M. Strauss  
& J. Shellback

2018 T. Robinson & J. Roberts

MIXED FOURSOMES
CHAMPIONSHIP
1978 C. Boyer & J. Lock

1979 B. Langsford  
& R. Wakeham

1980 C. Baillieu & M. Mooney

1981 K.D. Boyd & W. Boyd

1982 B.S. Hughes  
& H. McLean

1983 K. Skehan & B. Dillon

1984 R.W. Castles  
& G. Greenwood

1985 R.W. Castles  
& G. Greenwood

1986 K. Skehan & B. Dillon

1987 K. Skehan & B. Dillon

1988 K. Skehan & B. Dillon

1989 N.E. Crafter & J. Crafter

1990 J. Kirby & S. Muldowney

1991 R.W. Castles  
& J. Kennedy

1992 J.R. McCallum  
& S. Doggett

1993 R.W. Castles & J. Parkes

1994 M.L. Sund & M.G. Lee
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1995 M.J. Oldham  
& S.B. Williams

1996 B.P. Lamb  
& S.B. Williams

1997 R. Bulloch & A. Parsons

1998 A. Drummond  
& K. McIntosh

1999 B. Lamb  
& M. Holmes-Smith

2000 J. Wallis & A. Kingman

2001 M. Levy  
& M. Holmes-Smith

2002 K.Streat & A. Whittaker

2003 K.Streat & A. Whittaker

2004 T. Little & K. Combes

2005 B. Bickerton  
& N. Bickerton

2006 J. & P. Webb

2007 J. Bygrave & G. Smith

2008 B & N Bickerton

2009 G.& S. Ellery

2010 M. Ellis & C. Gay

2011 I. Frost & B. Mueck 

2012 M. Robersonand  
& I. Matthews

2013 M. Burgess  
& J. Charlton

2014 M. Burgess  
& J. Charlton

2015 G. Izon & O. Kline

2016 G. Izon & O. Kline 

2017 J. Ford & E. Smith

2018 P. Wickenden &  
D. Wickenden

AUSTRALASIAN
FOURSOMES
1912 Riversdale

1913 Metropolitan

1914 Victoria

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 Victoria

1920 Metropolitan

1921 Royal Melbourne

1922 Metropolitan

1923 Royal Melbourne

1924 Royal Melbourne

1925 Royal Melbourne

1926 Royal Melbourne

1927 Royal Melbourne

1928 Royal Melbourne

1929 Commonwealth

1930 Commonwealth

1931 Commonwealth

1932 Victoria

1933 Royal Melbourne

1934 Kingston Heath

1935 Yarra Yarra

1936 Victoria

1937 Kingswood

1938 Victoria

1939 Victoria

1941 Not played

1945 during war

1946 Kingswood

1947 Victoria

1948 Commonwealth

1949 Yarra Yarra

1950 Commonwealth

1951 Huntingdale

1952 Commonwealth

1953 Huntingdale

1954 Woodlands

1955 Huntingdale

1956 Kingston Heath

1957 Kingston Heath

1958 Kingswood

1959 Yarra Yarra

1960 Commonwealth

1961 Yarra Yarra

1962 Woodlands

1963 Kingswood

1964 Green Acres

1965 Long Island

1966 Kingswood

1967 Kingswood

1968 Keysborough

1969 Commonwealth

1970 Yarra Yarra

1971 Yarra Yarra

1972 Long Island

1973 Long Island

1974 Heidelberg

1975 Bendigo D.G.A.

1976 Southern

1977 Yarra Yarra

1978 Kingston Heath

1979 Central D.G.A.

1980 Commonwealth

1981 Commonwealth

1982 Box Hill

1983 Rosanna

1984 Victoria

1985 Geelong D.G.A.

1986 Commonwealth

1987 Kingswood

1988 Latrobe

1989 Peninsula D.G.A.

1990 Huntingdale

1991 Yarra Yarra

1992 Central D.G.A.

1993 East Gippsland D.G.A.

1994 Spring Valley

1995 Yarra Yarra

1996 Commonwealth

1997 Yarra Yarra

1998 Woodlands

1999 Keysborough

2000 Commonwealth

2001 Victoria

2002 Commonwealth

2003 Tullamarine

2004 West Gippsland D.G.A

2005 Keysborough

2006 West Gippsland D.G.A

2007 Kingston Heath

2008 Yarra Yarra

2009 Commonwealth

2010 Yarra Yarra

2011 Royal Melbourne

2012 Woodlands

2013 Rosanna

2014 Keysborough

2015 Goulburn Valley D.G.A

2016 Shepparton

2017 Ballarat D.G.A

2018 Peninsula-Kingswood

JUNIOR MASTERS (BOYS)
1995 J. King

1996 D.S. Gaunt

1997 L. Hickmott

1998 A. Baddeley

1999 G. Flint

2000 R. Moir

2001 M. Leishman

2002 M Sim

2003 A. Dodt

2004 B. Pisani

2005 J. Day

2006 M. Jager

2007 M. Gleeson

2008 J Jeong

2009 G. Drakeford

2010 T. Power Horan

2011 C. Smith

2012 T. Beaucousin

2013 D. Loypur

2014 C. Luck

2015 C. John

2016 J. Comerford

2017 J. Kalz

2018 T. Duncan

JUNIOR MASTERS (GIRLS)
2012 B. Ling

2013 M. Strauss

2014 A. Campbell

2015 H. Naveed

2016 Y. Hou

2017 G. Kim

2018 Y. Saso

JUNIOR VIC OPEN (BOYS)
2017 J. Kalz

2018 J. Stubbs

JUNIOR VIC OPEN (GIRLS)
2017 H. Park

2018 M.A. Yoon

MEN’S SAND GREENS
CHAMPIONSHIP
1972 P. Clark

1973 G. Prideaux

1974 R.J. Jenner

GOLF VICTORIA
Honour Roll  

1975 M.A. Clayton

1976 P.D. McKinnon

1977 R. Dickerson

1978 C.R. Boyer

1979 C.R. Boyer

1980 R. Dickerson

1981 R. Dickerson

1982 T. Tully

1983 J. Owen

1984 L. Johnstone

1985 M.J. Smyth

1986 D.B. Hill

1987 A.M. Kane

1988 L. Carracher

1989 J.H. Taylor

1990 A.M. Kane

1991 G.L. Vearing

1992 S.D. Allan

1993 S.D. Allan

1994 T.D. Daykin

1995 M.J. Oldham

1996 B.P. Lamb

1997 B. Meyers

1998 B. Meyers

1999 M. Both

2000 B. Ferguson

2001 T. Daykin

2002 C. Scott

2003 C. Scott

2004 A. Umbers

2005 D. Walker

2006 T. Tatt

2007 N. Buzimkic

2008 C. Tatt

2009 K. Mueck

2010 S. Goggin

2011 N. Schneider

2012 N. Schneider

2013 E. Carracher

2014 T. Coffey

2015 J. Brown

2016 E. Carracher

2017 E. Carracher

2018 B. Tatt

WOMEN’S SAND GREENS
CHAMPIONSHIP
1975 D. Wheeler

1976 P. Edmunds

1977 J. Chapman

1978 L. Deakin

1979 J. Dunlop

1980 J. O’rourke

1981 B. Towt

1982 P. Graeber

1983 G. Johnstone

1984 P. Graeber

1985 H. Greenwood

1986 S. Mccaw

1987 E. Williamson

1988 A. Joyce

1989 C. Dewinter

1990 I. Dark

1991 A. Johnston

1992 A. Johnston

1993 A. Johnston

1994 A. Johnston

1995 A. Johnston

1996 Y. Boyd

1997 S. Love

1998 V. Mitchell

1999 E. Raeck

2000 R. Drill

2001 L. Lacey

2002 Y. Boyd

2003 J. Jolly

2004 L. Gollop

2005 J. Kruger

2006 H. Leech

2007 H. Leech

2008 M. Davis

2009 J. Kruger

2010 M. Davis

2011 S. Lambert

2012 B. Scarff

2013 H. Pascoe

2014 H. Leech

2015 H. Pascoe

2016 H. Leech

2017 M. Whelan

2018 M. Davis

MEN’S PAR 3
CHAMPIONSHIP
2005  D. Walker

2006  J. Hession

2007  L. Bleumink

2008  A. Umbers

2009  R. Bourke

2010  A. Kane

2011 N. Schneider

2012 N. Schneider

2013 A. Kane

2014 Z. Murray

2015 C. Hasthorpe

2016 K. Michel

2017 C. John

2018 D. Makin

WOMEN’S PAR 3
CHAMPIONSHIP
2006 Kate Moore

2007 Catherine Odgers

2008 Kate Moore

2009 Catherine Odgers

2010 Catherine Odgers

2011 Jessica Pickwick

2012 Jessica Pickwick

2013 Catherine Odgers

2014 Sari Saly

2015 Jessica Pickwick

2016 Alexandra Hilliard

2017 Jessica Pickwick

2018 Piper Stubbs
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MEN’S PENNANT
1899 Geelong

1900 Geelong

1901 Geelong

1902 *

1903 Royal Melbourne

1904 Royal Melbourne

1905 Royal Melbourne

1906 Royal Melbourne

1907 Metropolitan

1908 Royal Melbourne

1909 Royal Melbourne

1910 Royal Melbourne

1911 Riversdale

1912 Royal Melbourne

1913 Riversdale

1914 Royal Melbourne

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 Royal Melbourne

1920 Metropolitan

1921 Royal Melbourne

1922 Metropolitan

1923 Royal Melbourne

1924 Royal Melbourne

1925 Royal Melbourne

1926 Victoria

1927 Victoria

1928 Victoria

1929 Royal Melbourne

1930 Commonwealth

1931 Royal Melbourne

1932 Victoria

1933 Commonwealth

1934 Kingston Heath

1935 Yarra Yarra

1936 Kingston Heath

1937 Victoria

1938 Kingswood

1939 Kingston Heath #

1940 Northern #

1941 Not played

1945 during war

1946 Yarra Yarra #

1947 Yarra Yarra #

1948 Victoria #

1949 Commonwealth #

1950 Victoria #

1951 Huntingdale #

1952 Commonwealth #

1953 Commonwealth #

1954 Huntingdale #

1955 Commonwealth #

1956 Yarra Yarra #

1957 Victoria #

1958 Victoria

1959 Victoria

1960 Southern

1961 Victoria
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* Abandoned, Royal Melbourne and  

Geelong Equal.

# Senior and Junior “A” and “B” respectively.

** Senior Pennant from 1967 – 2000

*** VGA Pennant from 2001 - 2010 

WOMEN’S PENNANT
1910 Royal Melbourne

1911 Riversdale

1912 Royal Melbourne

1913 Metropolitan

1914 Royal Melbourne

1915 Not Played

1916 Not Played

1917 Not Played

1918 Not Played

1919 Royal Melbourne

1920 Metropolitan

1921 Royal Melbourne

1922 Royal Melbourne

1923 Royal Melbourne

1924 Royal Melbourne

1925 Royal Melbourne

1926 Royal Melbourne

1927  

1928 Royal Melbourne

1929 Metropolitan

1930 Metropolitan

1931 Royal Melbourne

1932 Royal Melbourne

1933 Royal Melbourne

1934 Royal Melbourne

1935 Royal Melbourne

1936 Metropolitan

1937 Royal Melbourne

1938 Kingston Heath

1939 Kingston Heath

1940 Not Played

1941 Not Played

1942 Not Played

1943 Not Played

1944 Not Played

1945 Not Played

1946 Not Played

1947 Not Played

1948 Not Played

1949 Royal Melbourne

1950 Yarra Yarra 

1951 Yarra Yarra 

1952 Royal Melbourne

1953 Victoria

1954 Metropolitan

1955 Royal Melbourne

1956 Metropolitan

1957 Royal Melbourne

1958 Metropolitan

1959 Yarra Yarra 

1960 Metropolitan

1961 Royal Melbourne

1962 Woodlands

1963 Victoria

1964 Yarra Yarra

1965 Metropolitan

1966 Victoria    

1967 Victoria    

1968 Huntingdale      

1969 Huntingdale      

1970 Huntingdale      

1971 Southern

1972 Huntingdale

1973 Victoria

1974 Keysborough

1975 Keysborough

1976 Victoria

1977 Victoria

1978 Huntingdale

1979 Victoria

1980 Royal Melbourne

1981 Victoria

1982 Victoria

1983 Victoria

1984 Commonwealth

1985 Huntingdale

1986 Huntingdale

1987 Huntingdale

1988 Woodlands

1989 Keysborough

1990 Woodlands

1991 Huntingdale

1992 Commonwealth

1993 Commonwealth

1994 Victoria

1995 Commonwealth

1996 Yarra Yarra

1997 Commonwealth

1998 Commonwealth

1999 Woodlands

2000 Huntingdale

2001 Huntingdale

2002 Kingston Heath

2003 Yarra Yarra

2004 Huntingdale

2005 Kingston Heath

2006 Huntingdale

2007 Heidelberg

2008 Yarra Yarra

2009 Kingston Heath

2010 Commonwealth

2011 Commonwealth

2012 Kingston Heath

2013 Metropolitan

2014 Metropolitan

2015 Huntingdale

2016 Victoria

2017 Commonwealth

2018 Commonwealth

1962 Victoria

1963 Southern

1964 Victoria

1965 Victoria

1966 Victoria

1967 Southern **

1968 Southern

1969 Kingswood

1970 Yarra Yarra

1971 Yarra Yarra

1972 Victoria

1973 Yarra Yarra

1974 Victoria

1975 Kingswood

1976 Commonwealth

1977 Kingswood

1978 Kingswood

1979 Woodlands

1980 Southern

1981 Victoria

1982 Commonwealth

1983 Commonwealth

1984 Victoria

1985 Victoria

1986 Metropolitan

1987 Metropolitan

1988 Victoria

1989 Huntingdale

1990 Huntingdale

1991 Huntingdale

1992 Southern

1993 Spring Valley

1994 Southern

1995 Woodlands

1996 Woodlands

1997 Victoria

1998 Woodlands

1999 Woodlands

2000 Spring Valley

2001 Kingswood

2002 Kingswood

2003 Southern

2004 Commonwealth

2005 Victoria

2006 Kingswood

2007 Yarra Yarra

2008 Victoria

2009 Commonwealth

2010 Waverley

2011 Kingswood

2012 Yarra Yarra

2013 Yarra Yarra

2014 Commonwealth

2015 Commonwealth

2016 Metropolitan

2017 Commonwealth

2018 Metropolitan
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# Senior and Junior “A” and “B” respectively.

JUNIOR PENNANT
1903 Royal Melbourne

1904 Royal Melbourne

1905 Royal Melbourne

1906 Victoria

1907 Kew

1908 Essendon

1909 Victoria

1910 Metropolitan

1911 Kew

1912 Royal Melbourne

1913 Royal Melbourne

1914 Metropolitan

1915 Not played

1918 during war

1919 Royal Park

1920 Metropolitan

1921 Yarra Yarra

1922 Geelong

1923 Yarra Yarra

1924 Commonwealth

1925 Commonwealth

1926 Kingston Heath

1927 Woodlands

1928 Woodlands

1929 Northern

1930 Northern

1931 Sandridge

1932 Commonwealth

1933 Commonwealth

1934 Kingswood

1935 Kew

1936 Kew

1937 Kingswood

1938 Albert Park

1939 Kingston Heath #

1940 Not played

1945 during war

1946 Amstel #

1947 Huntingdale #

1948 Amstel #

1949 Amstel #

1950 Rosanna #

1951 Patterson River #

1952 Heidelberg #

1953 Green Acres #

1954 Albert Park #

1955 Spring Valley #

1956 Green Acres #

1957 Spring Valley #

2006 Long Island

2007 Green Acres

2008 Riversdale

2009 Kew

2010 Rossdale

2011 Kingswood

2012 Bendigo DGA

2013 The Heritage

2014 Waverley

2015 Kew

2016 Yarra Yarra

2017 Woodlands

2018 Box Hill

COLTS PENNANT
(Under age)

1954 Royal Park

1955 Huntingdale

1956 Kingswood

1957 Southern

1958 Patterson River

1959 Yarra Yarra

1960 Keysborough

1961 Patterson River

1962 Yarra Yarra

1963 Long Island

1964 Long Island

1965 Southern

1966 Kingswood

1967 Patterson River**

1968 Long Island

1969 Huntingdale

1970 Southern

1971 Southern

1972 Huntingdale

1973 Woodlands

1974 Patterson River

1975 Woodlands

1976 Patterson River

1977 Yarra Yarra

1978 Southern

1979 Southern

1980 Keysborough

1981 Southern

1982 Northern

1983 Woodlands

1984 Woodlands

1985 Northern

1986 Yarra Yarra

1987 Commonwealth

1988 Latrobe

1989 Latrobe

1990 Yarra Yarra

1991 Kingswood

1992 Kingswood

1993 Yarra Yarra

1994 Spring Valley

1995 Southern

1996 Yarra Yarra

1997 Woodlands

1998 Victoria

1999 Southern

2000 Woodlands

2001 Commonwealth

2002 Yarra Yarra

2003 Kingswood

2004 Kingswood

2005 Kingswood

2006 Kingswood

2007 Kingswood

2008 Yarra Yarra

2009 Yarra Yarra

2010 Commonwealth

2011 Kingswood

2012 Commonwealth

2013 Commonwealth

2014 Commonwealth

2015 Commonwealth 

2016 Metropolitan

2017 Commonwealth

2018 Commonwealth

MEN’S COUNTRY WEEK 
SHIELD 
(“Leader” to 1962, “Age” to 1986, “State Bank 

Shield” to 1991 “Commonwealth Bank Shield” 

to 1997, “Bendigo Bank Shield” to 2002)

1924 Ballarat

1925 Warrnambool

1926 Corangamite

1927 North Eastern

1928 Gippsland

1929 Corangamite

1930 Ballarat

1931 Ballarat

1932 Ballarat

1933 North Eastern

1934 West Gippsland

1935 West Gippsland

1936 North Eastern

1937 North Eastern

1938 East Gippsland

1939 East Gippsland

1940 Not played

1945 During War

1946 Ballarat

1947 North Eastern

1948 Ballarat

1949 Ballarat

1950 Geelong

1951 North Eastern

1952 North Eastern

1953 East Gippsland

1954 East Gippsland

1955 West Gippsland

1956 East Gippsland

1957 West Gippsland

1958 Ballarat

1959 Ballarat

1960 Corio

1961 West Gippsland

1962 East Gippsland

1963 West Gippsland

1964 North Eastern

1965 West Gippsland

1966 Goulburn Valley

1967 North Eastern

1968 Goulburn Valley
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1969 Goulburn Valley

1970 West Gippsland

1971 Corangamite

1972 Goulburn Valley

1973 West Gippsland

1974 West Gippsland

1975 West Gippsland

1976 Goulburn Valley

1977 Central

1978 Goulburn Valley

1979 West Gippsland

1980 West Gippsland

1981 West Gippsland

1982 Peninsula

1983 West Gippsland

1984 West Gippsland

1985 North Eastern

1986 North Eastern

1987 North Eastern

1988 West Gippsland

1989 Geelong

1990 Ballarat

1991 Geelong

1992 West Gippsland

1993 West Gippsland

1994 Ballarat

1995 Ballarat

1996 Goulburn Valley

1997 Ballarat

1998 West Gippsland

1999 Peninsula

2000 Peninsula

2001 Peninsula

2002 Peninsula

2003 Peninsula

2004 Peninsula

2005 Peninsula

2006 Geelong

2007 Goulburn Valley

2008 Peninsula

2009 Goulburn Valley

2010 Goulburn Valley

2011 Ballarat

2012 Peninsula

2013 Ballarat

2014 Ballarat

2015 West Gippsland

2016 Golf Peninsula Vic.

2017 Ballarat

2018 Goulburn Murray

MEN’S COUNTRY WEEK 
PLATE 
(“P.D.P. Shield” to 1986, “State Bank Plate” to 

1991 “Commonwealth Bank Plate” to 1997 

“Bendigo Bank Plate” to 2002)

1956 Corangamite

1957 North Eastern

1958 South Gippsland

1959 Corio

1960 North Eastern

1961 Peninsula

1962 South Gippsland

1963 Central

1964 South Gippsland

1965 Corangamite

1966 Bendigo

1967 Peninsula

1968 Kara Kara

1969 East Gippsland

1970 Bendigo

1971 Geelong

1972 Central

1973 Bendigo

1974 Northern

1975 Ballarat

1976 Wimmera

1977 East Gippsland

1978 Peninsula

1979 Peninsula

1980 Wimmera

1981 Peninsula

1982 East Gippsland

1983 Ballarat

1984 Geelong

1985 Mildura

1986 South Gippsland

1987 Ballarat

1988 Dalhousie

1989 Northern

1990 Corangamite

1991 North Eastern

1992 Bendigo

1993 East Gippsland

1994 East Gippsland

1995 Peninsula

1996 South Western

1997 Wimmera

1998 East Gippsland

1999 Ballarat

2000 East Gippsland

2001 Bendigo

2002 Ballarat

2003 Sunraysia

2004 West Gippsland

2005 Ballarat

2006 Bendigo

2007 West Gippsland

2008 Sunraysia

2009 East Gippsland

2010 Bendigo

2011 Geelong

2012 West Gippsland

2013 Sunraysia

2014 Goulburn Valley

2015 Geelong

2016 Western 

2017 Goulburn Murray

2018 Murray Darling

MEN’S COUNTRY WEEK 
BOWL
1994 Central

1995 South Western

1996 Wimmera

1997 Corangamite

1998 Northern

1999 South Gippsland

2000 Dalhousie

2001 Corangamite

2002 South Western

2003 Wimmera

2004 South Gippsland

2005 Bendigo

2006 Dalhousie

2007 Sunraysia

2008 Corangamite

2009 Dalhousie

WOMEN’S COUNTRY 
TEAMS - Division 1
1933 Gippsland

1934 East Gippsland

1935 Bendigo

1936 Coromgamite

1937 Coromgamite

1938 East Gippsland

1939 No Matches

1940 No Matches

1941 No Matches

1942 No Matches

1943 No Matches

1944 No Matches

1945 No Matches

1946 No Matches

1947 Ballarat

1948 East Gippsland

1949 Ballarat

1950 Ballarat

1951 Ballarat

1952 Ballarat

1953 East Gippsland

1954 East Gippsland

1955 Ballarat

1956 Ballarat

1957 Ballarat

1958 Central Gippsland

1959 Ballarat

1960 East Gippsland

1961 Central Gippsland

1962 East Gippsland

1963 East Gippsland

1964 Central Gippsland

1965 Central Gippsland

1966 East Gippsland

2010 South Western

2011 North Eastern

2012 South Western

2013 East Gippsland

2014 Wimmera

2015 East Gippsland

2016 Dalhousie

2017 East Gippsland

2018 South Gippsland

GOLF VICTORIA
Honour Roll  

1967 North Eastern

1968 Ballarat

1969 East Gippsland

1970 East Gippsland

1971 Goulburn Valley

1972 East/West Gippsland

1973 Goulburn Valley

1974 Goulburn Valley

1975 Goulburn Valley

1976 East/West Gippsland

1977 Coromgamite

1978 East/West Gippsland

1979 Goulburn Valley

1980 Goulburn Valley

1981 North Eastern

1982 North Eastern

1983 North Eastern

1984 North Eastern

1985 Bendigo

1986 Bendigo

1987 North Eastern

1988 Bendigo

1989 North Eastern

1990 Bendigo

1991 North Eastern

1992 North Eastern

1993 North Eastern

1994 North Eastern

1995 North Eastern

1996 North Eastern

1997 North Eastern

1998 North Eastern

1999 South Western

2000 South Western

2001 South Western

2002 North Eastern

2003 South Western

2004 North Eastern

2005 North Eastern

2006 Mornington Peninsula

2007 Mornington Peninsula

2008 Mornington Peninsula

2009 North Eastern

2010 North Eastern

2011 North Eastern

2012 North Eastern

2013 South Western

2014 South Western

2015 South Western

2016 Golf Peninsula Vic.

2017 Goulburn Murray

2018 North Eastern

WOMEN’S COUNTRY 
TEAMS - Division 2
1970 Ballarat

1971 Western

1972 North Eastern

1973 Coromgamite

1974 Ballarat

1975 Gippsland-Peninsula

1976 Ballarat

1977 Western

1978 Goulburn Valley

1979 Ballarat

1980 Bendigo

1981 Gippsland-Peninsula

1982 Bendigo

1983 North Western

1984 West Gippsland

1985 North Western

1986 Western

1987 South Western

1988 South Gippsland

1989 South Western

1990 West Gippsland

1991 Western

1992 Goulburn Valley

1993 South Western

1994 West Gippsland

1995 South Gippsland

1996 West Gippsland

1997 Bendigo

1998 Peninsula

1999 Goulburn Valley

2000 East Gippsland

2001 Ballarat

2002 Wimmera

2003 Mornington Peninsula

2004 Goulburn Valley

2005 Western

2006 East Gippsland

2007 North Eastern

2008 South Western

2009 Western

2010 Goulburn Valley

2011 Bendigo

2012 East Gippsland

2013 Mornington Peninsula

2014 Western

2015 Ballarat

2016 Goulburn Valley

2017 Golf Central Vic.

2018 East Gippsland

WOMEN’S COUNTRY 
TEAMS - Division 3
1984 Peninsula

1985 East Gippsland

1986 South Gippsland

1987 Dalhousie

1988 Wimmera

1989 West Gippsland

1990 Northern

1991 Mornington Peninsula

1992 Dalhousie

1993 Peninsula

1994 Dalhousie

1995 East Gippsland

1996 Ballarat

1997 Peninsula

1998 Goulburn Valley

1999 Wimmera

2000 Ballarat

2001 Dalhousie

2002 South Gippsland

2003 Northern

2004 South Gippsland

2005 Bendigo

2006 Dalhousie

2007 Northern

2008 Bendigo

2009 East Gippsland

2010 Bendigo

2011 North Western

2012 Mornington Peninsula

2013 Northern

2014 Dalhousie

2015 Murray Darling

2016 Northern

2017 South Gippsland

2018 Murray Darling

IVO WHITTON TROPHY
1960 K.W. Hartley

1961 T.L. Crow

1962 K.W. Hartley

1963 K.W. Hartley

1964 K.W. Hartley

1965 K.W. Hartley

1966 K.W. Hartley

1967 K.W. Hartley

1968 K.W. Hartley

1969 W.J. Britten

1970 K.W. Hartley

1971 K.W. Hartley

1972 R.L. Wines

1973 K.W. Kilburn

1974 D.J. Reiter

1975 W.J. Britten

1976 K.W. Hartley

1977 K.W. Hartley

1978 M.A. Clayton

1979 C.R. Boyer

1980 M.A. Clayton

1981 P.J. Sweeney

1982 R.J. Jenner

1983 D.A. Smith

1984 J.D. Lindsay

1985 D.A. Smith

1986 C.E. Howell

1987 B.S. Hughes

1988 P.A. Moloney

1989 R.W. Castles

1990 R.M. Allenby

1991 R.M. Allenby

1992 D.A. Armstrong

1993 G.L. Vearing

1994 S.D. Allan

1995 G.C. Ogilvy

1996 C.B. Percy

1997 G.C. Ogilvy

1998 A. Webster
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1999 M. Fraser

2000 J. Sutherland

2001 M. Both

2002 L. Hickmott

2003 A. Porker

2004 S. Jones

2005 A. Hall

2006 J. Younger

2007 L. Bleumink

2008 L. Bleumink

2009 L. Bleumink

2010 R. Bourke

2011 A. Houston

2012 R. Woodward

2013 T. Power-Horan

2014 C. Wright

2015 K. Michel

2016 K. Michel

2017 K. Michel

2018 K. Michel

SUSIE TOLHURST TROPHY
2012 S.H. Oh

2013 J. Soo

2014 J. Charlton

2015 J. Soo

2016 A. Hilliard

2017 K. Matsumoto

2018 J. Pickwick

GEOFF OGILVY TROPHY
(Junior Ivo Whitton prior to 2006)

1982 M.C. Sammells

1983 M.C. Sammells

1984 S. Balloch

1985 A. LaBrooy

1986 C.E. Howell

1987 B.S. Hughes

1988 J.M. Wade

1989 P.A. Johns

1990 R.M. Allenby

1991 R.M. Allenby

1992 D.A. Armstrong

1993 G.L. Vearing

1994 S.D. Allan

1995 G.C. Ogilvy

1996 G.C. Ogilvy

FUTURE CHAMPIONS 
TROPHY
2012 Julienne Soo

2013 Julienne Soo

2014 Kono Matsumoto

2015 Kono Matsumoto

2016 Linley Ooi

2017 Kay Bannan

2018 Jeneath Wong

DOUG BACHLI TROPHY
2006 Ross Percy

2007 Ross Percy

2008 David McDonald

2009 Michael Jackson

2010 Ross Percy

2011 Ross Percy

2012 Alan Bullas

2013 Michael Jackson

2014 Gordon Claney

2015 Ian Frost

2016 Ian Frost

2017 Gordon Claney

2018 Geoffrey Charnley

WOMEN’S SENIOR 
RANKINGS 
2016 Helen Pascoe

2017 Helen Pascoe

2018 Helen Pascoe

 JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIP 
(BOYS)
1960 H. McGain

1961 D.J. Moir

1962 R.L. Judd

1963 J. Yelland

1964 M. O’Shea

1965 A. Reiter

1966 N. Kirkham

1967 I.E. Stanley

1968 B. Langsford

1969 I.E. Stanley

1970 S.P. Ginn

1971 M.F. Cahill

1972 R.D. Beel

1973 R.J. Gribusts

1974 T.G. Henley

1975 K.L. Lewis

1976 C.R. Boyer

1977 M.A. Clayton

1978 M.A. Clayton

1979 D.J. Cole

1980 M.A. Chadwick

1981 D.J. Cole

1982 S.H. Grimshaw

1983 M.C. Sammells

1984 D. Pintar

1985 P.L. Murphy

1986 J.M. Wade

1987 B.S. Hughes

1988 D. Diaz

1989 J.B. Taylor

1990 R.M. Allenby

1991 R.G. Green

1992 R.J. Meadows

1993 M.D. Miller

1994 M.D. McGrath

1995 B.P. Lamb

1996 B. Van de Steeg

1997 L. Hickmott

1998 H. D’Altera

1999 K. Streat

2000 C. Scott

2001 S. Jones

2002 A. Kern

2003 A. Kelly

2004 A. Kelly

2005 K. Pratt

2006 K. Mueck

2007 L. Cain

2008 N. Holman

2009 T. Sharpe

2010 J. Higginbottom

2011 L. Herbert

2012 K. McBride

Note: Combined with Victorian 
Boys Championship from 2013.

1997 G.C. Ogilvy

1998 A. Baddeley

1999 A. Brown

2000 A. Hall

2001 A. Tampion

2002 A. Tampion

2003 L. Veith

2004 A. Kelly

2005 A. Kelly

2006 A. Smith

2007 K. Mueck

2008 A. Houston

2009 R. Woodward

2010 S. Ong

2011 J. Bannan

2012 D. Micheluzzi

2013 B. Coletta

2014 M. Sanchez

2015 A. Lautee

2016 A. Lautee

2017 T. Walker

2018 D. Gill

69

GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

MEMBER CLUBS 2018 2017 2018 2017

Ranfurlie (Formerly Amstel) 413 465 51 55

Bacchus Marsh 229 261 34 35

Berwick-Montuna 366 343 43 43

Box Hill 799 782 196 163

Cheltenham 253 249 124 125

Chirnside Park - Gardiners 
Run

482 458 63 77

Churchill Waverley 706 725 99 109

Commonwealth 997 1034 301 279

Cranbourne 689 682 129 132

Eastern 917 946 106 134

Eastwood 709 748 94 102

Eynesbury 287 292 7 12

Gisborne 380 383 73 70

Goonawarra 561 548 65 71

Green Acres 832 850 364 347

Heidelberg 739 719 94 96

Heritage 606 319 179 80

Huntingdale 982 962 216 227

Kew 875 916 348 373

Keysborough 958 962 157 147

Kingston Heath 906 898 277 273

Kooringal 825 883 138 136

Latrobe 927 956 208 197

Medway 601 647 88 97

Melbourne Airport 371 328 6 7

Melton Valley 350 389 33 43

Metropolitan 851 869 265 273

Northern 827 928 103 122

Patterson River 551 504 120 102

Peninsula-Kingswood 1590 1624 484 467

Riversdale 1119 1140 262 268

Rosanna 869 860 192 194

Rossdale 431 394 116 109

Royal Melbourne 1711 1698 541 525

Sanctuary Lakes 598 768 75 90

Sandhurst 722 724 129 139

Settlers Run 578 581 73 66

Southern 998 1006 183 195

Spring Valley 643 624 137 131

Mt Derrimut (Formerly 
Sunshine)

349 363 37 37

The National 2651 2684 429 450

Victoria 889 908 411 430

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

MEMBER CLUBS 2018 2017 2018 2017

Werribee Park 424 406 51 58

Whittlesea 109 99 8 6

Woodlands 853 869 177 177

Yarra Yarra 851 842 216 253

Yarra Valley 178 218 62 72

Yarrambat 251 280 7 10

Yering Meadows 600 600 105 105

MEMBER NUMBERS 35403 35734 7676 7709

NO OF CLUBS 49 49 49 49

ASSOCIATED CLUBS 2018 2017 2018 2017

Capital 14 14 0 0

AFFILIATED CLUBS 2018 2017 2018 2017

RAAF Williams 147 136 13 13

Strathallan 196 214 17 25

MEMBER NUMBERS 343 350 30 38

NO OF CLUBS 2 2 2 2

2018 Boys’ & Girls’ Vic Junior Champions:  
Kuzuma Kobori & Sophie Yip
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MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

VICTORIAN GOLF LEAGUE 
CLUBS - Full Member

2018 2017 2018 2017

Altona Lakes 102 107 23 24

Australasian 76 75 11 12

Brighton 200 228 72 83

Bundoora Park Ladies 35 45

Burnley 96 112 11 21

Burnley Women's 65 64

Camberwell 227 240 49 47

Centenary Park 312 318 105 111

Craigieburn Willmott 143 184 22 27

Creekside 109 137 25 26

Dorset 227 228 24 27

Dorset Golf Lady Members 30 26

East Bentleigh YWCA 55 56

East Malvern 128 118 12 11

Eastern Sward 215 194 20 20

Elsternwick Park 37 43 0 1

Elsternwick Park Womens 38 31

Forest Hills 34 45 1 1

Glen Waverley 181 189 60 61

Growling Frog 145 131 10 9

Growling Frog Ladies 0 31 35

Harp 40 38 18 20

Ivanhoe Ladies 58 58

Kings Park 21 28 0

Lakeside 239 239 41 41

Lakeside Ladies 75 81

Malverndale Ladies 68 85

Malvern Park Ladies 77 75

Mandalay 258 353 13 26

Mentone 95 114

Moorabbin Ladies 21 25

Morack Ladies 57 59

Morack Seniors 57 68 0

Mount Martha 163 175 0 0

Nepean 50 56 0

Nepean Women's 70 81

Normanby Park 10 19

Northcote 86 98 0

Oakleigh 29 36 0

Oakleigh Ladies 0 28 37

Olinda 34 37 7 8

Parkview Ladies 26 29

Ringwood 219 253 100 103

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

VICTORIAN GOLF LEAGUE 
CLUBS - Full Member

2018 2017 2018 2017

Riverside/Essendon 89 91 80 81

Riverview 122 143 0

Riverview Ladies 70 66

Royal Park 79 87 2 2

Royal Park Ladies 42 38

Sandringham 270 281 24 23

Sandringham Associates 63 63

Scotchman's Creek 111 119

Stud Valley Ladies 0 20 19

Timbertop 0 8 15

Tirhatuan 106 101 36 38

Waterford Valley 74 69 1 0

Wattle Park 21 30 3 4

Wattle Park Ladies 36 37

Wellington Links  
(Disaffiliated 2018)

0 50

Westgate 70 88 1 1

Yarra Bend Ladies 0 110 120

Yarrambat Park Ladies 0 63 68

Yarraview 44 47 1 0

MEMBER NUMBERS 4414 4836 2023 2174

NO OF CLUBS 36 37 52 51

2018 Vic Open Winners: Simon Hawkes & Minjee Lee  

GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

VICTORIAN GOLF LEAGUE 
CLUBS - Restricted Members

2018 2017 2018 2017

19th Hole 12 6

Ale & Flail 37 33 3 3

Bar Pris Golf Club 7 4

Barwon Grove GC 28 23

BBPG 55 63 1

Blue Diamond 29 30

Bragging Rites GC 28 28

Bushranger Golf 21 31 1 0

Chinese Eagle GA 14 13 1 1

City View GC 11 9 1

Clifton Hill 50 51

Crest Social 21 23

Croatian 59 57 1 1

Cypriot 27 28

Double Eagle 25 0

Elsternwick UFC Social 16 16

Fuson GC 35 20

Golden Olive 30 30

Goldfields 20 24

Great Country Australia GCA 15 14

Greek Gentlemens 22 21

GSM Golf Club 393 493 9 15

Gunnamatta 184 180 10 10

Hacker, Hookers & Hustlers 11 11

Hookers & Slicers 12 11

Italian Golf Association 27 36

Ivanhoe Mens Social 26 35

Kalora Park 7 8

Kayser Social 25 26

Keilor Golf Club 32 29 9 6

Kiwi Melbourne 33 31 3 4

Maile 18 19 3 3

Melbourne 10 10

MFB Social 53 49

Nafrega Social 13 13

North Balwyn Allcomers 17 17

Phoenix Golf 5 0

PPP Social 19 15 0

Putters Social 12 11

Q Golf Club 10 12

Ranelagh Club 6 7 1 2

Reserve Bank Victoria GC 17 21 1 1

Serbian GC 22 22

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

VICTORIAN GOLF LEAGUE 
CLUBS - Restricted Members

2018 2017 2018 2017

Single Malt Golf Club 37 37

Sortino 30 36

Spring Park 25 27 4 2

The Aegean GC 21 29

The Fairway Club 30 31

The Social 328 384 5 8

Tour Elephants 18 15

Victorian Chemist 19 22 1 1

Victorian Sikhs Association 34 29

Vic Taxi Association 19 21 1 1

Victorian Vietnamese Golf 
Association

27 33 4 6

Waterford Villages Golf Club 35 28 10 9

West Preston Lakeside Golf 
Club

21 26

Wikitoria United 6 9 1 1

Yarra Bend 5 0

Yarra Park 15 19 8 8

Yarra Valley Golf Alliance 10 10

MEMBER NUMBERS 2194 2336 77 83

NO OF CLUBS 60 57 20 19

Total VGL Member Numbers 6608 7172 2100 2257

TOTAL VGL CLUBS 96 94 72 70
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MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

BALLARAT DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Avoca 21 20 19 15

Bacchus Marsh West 95 103 25 14

Ballan 71 62 9 9

Ballarat 701 686 146 136

Beaufort 172 128 25 18

Buninyong 290 287 61 59

Chalambar 198 209 75 76

Clunes 22 22 7 5

RACV Goldfields (Creswick) 100 72 16 14

Elmhurst 11 11 0 0

Hepburn Springs 114 108 49 54

Lexton 20 17 4 7

Maryborough 162 170 50 56

Meredith 23 20 8 9

Midlands 404 405 110 112

Mt Xavier 159 150 19 24

Rokewood 32 35 2 4

Skipton 24 23 6 11

Snake Valley 57 56 21 20

Talbot 50 48 20 19

MEMBER NUMBERS 2726 2632 672 662

No of Clubs 20 20 20 20

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

GOLF CENTRAL VICTORIA 
DISTRICT 

2018 2017 2018 2017

Axedale 236 223 77 77

Bamawm 21 27 9 10

Belvoir Park 250 239 53 54

Bendigo 431 471 107 110

Bridgewater on Loddon 3 4 5 7

Calival 0 13 11

Campaspe 13 14 11 10

Castlemaine 97 113 38 44

Dunolly 22 18 5 4

Elmore 25 22 16 18

Heathcote 98 91 30 33

Inglewood 11 8 8 1

Kyneton 136 108 0 45

Lockington 39 41 12 17

Maldon 27 26 6 8

Marong 76 74 19 21

Mitiamo 26 23 10 8

Mt Alexander 18 20 15 17

Neangar Park 444 429 95 99

Quarry Hill 32 30 7 7

Raywood 21 14 7 6

MEMBER NUMBERS 2026 2047 530 618

NO OF CLUBS 21 21 20 22

GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics 

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

DALHOUSIE DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Alexandra 63 65 29 32

Avenel 21 17 15 16

Broadford 143 131 25 20

Eildon 40 44 2 3

Euroa 127 123 56 71

Hidden Valley 164 140 22 22

Kilmore 117 125 0 23

Lancefield 51 50 23 11

Marysville 70 71 25 32

Mt Macedon 88 79 4 5

RACV Healesville 163 165 37 29

Romsey 42 30 14 16

Seymour 98 94 26 28

Strathbogie 42 44 16 12

Trentham 188 162 44 46

Woodend 97 122 16 27

Yea 46 51 22 24

MEMBER NUMBERS 1560 1513 376 417

NO OF CLUBS 17 17 17 17

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

EAST GIPPSLAND DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Bairnsdale 387 376 181 186

Buchan Valley 24 25 12 13

Goose Gully 8 7 14 15

Heyfield 87 86 19 21

Kings Cove 57 68 49 47

Lakes Entrance 248 171 101 81

Lakes View (Disaffiliated 2018) 0 89 0 40

Loch Sport 18 17 6 7

Maffra 127 143 52 55

Mallacoota 49 38 26 28

Newry 49 61 15 13

Omeo 22 16 9 9

Orbost 87 91 24 28

Sale 212 232 62 65

South Pines 129 144 38 44

Tambo Valley 57 44 20 18

Toongabbie 36 30 18 21

Yarram 101 109 33 36

MEMBER NUMBERS 1698 1747 679 727

NO OF CLUBS 17 18 17 18

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

SOUTH WESTERN DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Anglesea 502 519 159 163

Apollo Bay 199 206 84 88

Bannockburn 78 92 36 32

Barwon Heads 1082 1073 660 664

Barwon Valley 414 412 73 76

Beeac 36 36 23 21

Bellarine Lakes 61 50 32 20

Birregurra 37 46 16 14

Clifton Springs 295 305 81 80

Colac 205 224 37 40

Curlewis 526 501 131 130

East Geelong 249 243 50 48

Geelong  210 144 16 10

Inverleigh 24 34 26 26

Lara 172 177 39 38

Lonsdale 322 367 153 112

Lorne 179 180 66 64

Ocean Grove 235 304 89 103

Portarlington 499 509 139 143

Queenscliff 166 150 24 24

Queens Park 241 266 115 127

St Leonards 39 43 10 9

The Sands Torquay 314 258 84 48

Thirteenth Beach 875 856 222 230

Torquay 912 869 287 295

Winchelsea 78 75 24 18

MEMBER NUMBERS 7950 7939 2676 2623

NO OF CLUBS 26 26 26 26
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MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

GOULBURN MURRAY 
DISTRICT

2018 2017 2018 2017

Cobram Barooga 318 317 102 103

Cosgrove 16 16 2 2

Hill Top 156 156 65 61

Kialla 71 71 34 37

Kyabram Parkland 278 303 88 86

Kyabram Valley View 75 71 39 39

Mathoura 13 14 5 4

Merrigum 24 32 8 9

Mooroopna 345 352 86 97

Murchison 8 5 3 3

Nagambie 83 83 24 25

Nathalia 34 29 14 8

Numurkah 201 267 49 54

Rich River 829 880 253 269

Rochester 37 12

Rushworth 24 23 0 0

Shepparton 492 409 106 95

Strathmerton 15 15 14 12

Tallygaroopna 16 12 0 0

Tocumwal 570 577 186 186

MEMBER NUMBERS 3605 3632 1090 1090

NO OF CLUBS 20 19 20 19

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

KARA KARA DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Berriwillock 7 12 3 4

Birchip 25 19 16 13

Boort 25 24 14 14

Charlton 34 39 13 13

Culgoa 13 14 5 5

Donald 29 35 20 22

Korong Vale 10 10 0 0

Sea Lake 20 19 2 1

St Arnaud 35 38 37 36

Wedderburn 17 24 13 14

Woomelang 10 9 5 3

Wycheproof 28 25 8 9

MEMBER NUMBERS 253 268 136 134

NO OF CLUBS 12 12 12 12

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

MURRAY DARLING DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Broken Hill 246 243 29 29

Coomealla 568 618 118 144

Manangatang 11 12 8 8

Merbein 79 62 11 8

Mildura 334 326 72 69

Ouyen 38 48 14 18

Red Cliffs 109 125 55 65

Riverside 226 269 66 80

Robinvale 130 139 34 31

Underbool 5 7 5 10

Wentworth 16 15 0 0

MEMBER NUMBERS 1762 1864 412 462

NO OF CLUBS 11 11 11 11

GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics 

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

NORTH EASTERN DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Beechworth 38 54 7 9

Benalla 348 332 93 93

Bethanga 20 25 0 0

Black Bull 75 63 29 18

Boorhaman 8 7 3 3

Bright 157 167 40 36

Chiltern 18 10 2 2

Commercial Albury 38 36

Corowa 12 23

Corryong (Disaffiliated 
2018)

0 18

Dederang 14 14 1 2

Golden Vale 16 16 1 1

Howlong 8 10

Jubilee 237 218 48 44

Mansfield 307 306 90 102

Mitta Mitta 12 15 4 5

Mt Beauty 125 125 33 32

Myrtleford 73 67 28 23

Rutherglen 36 38 15 13

St James 26 24 3 5

Tallangatta 25 33 6 5

Tallangatta Valley 20 18 0 0

Tarrawingee 27 29 27 33

Thurgoona 19 22

Walwa (Disaffiliated 2018) 0 11

Wangaratta 128 135 52 54

Wodonga 530 427 98 98

Yackandandah 58 62 25 25

Yarrawonga & Border 1462 1548 448 485

MEMBER NUMBERS 3760 3733 1130 1208

NO OF CLUBS 23 23 26 27

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

NORTHERN DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balranald 22 16 10 9

Barham 157 153 70 71

Cohuna 131 123 49 48

Kerang 106 113 38 30

Lakeside 33 38 19 22

Lalbert 38 34 5 5

Murrabit 23 19 2 4

Murray Downs 366 482 142 166

Nyah West 22 23 8 9

Pyramid Hill 28 31 10 14

Quambatook 8 16 0 8

Tooleybuc 55 49 18 18

MEMBER NUMBERS 989 1097 371 404

NO OF CLUBS 12 12 12 12

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

GOLF PENINSULA VIC 
DISTRICT 

2018 2017 2018 2017

Cardinia Beaconhills 376 370 61 60

Carrington Park at Eagle 
Ridge

88 80 46 38

Devil Bend 333 358 45 45

Flinders 508 520 200 209

HMAS Cerberus 163 166 42 42

Moonah Links 241 226 26 23

Mornington 544 565 114 115

Mt Martha Ladies 0 73 82

Portsea 484 497 161 169

RACV Cape Schanck 212 161 46 43

Rosebud 652 660 283 278

Bay Views (formerly Rose-
bud Park)

64 63 20 20

Safety Beach - Mt Martha 161 158 63 58

Sorrento 930 916 532 512

The Dunes 473 470 215 216

Warburton 139 130 9 13

MEMBER NUMBERS 5368 5340 1936 1923

NO OF CLUBS 15 15 16 16
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GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

SOUTH GIPPSLAND DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Aussie Golf Ranch 22 23 8 7

Foster 140 184 43 43

Korumburra 123 119 46 49

Lang Lang 356 355 43 43

Leongatha 382 367 119 119

Meeniyan 70 97 34 33

Phillip Island 392 384 108 106

Welshpool 56 52 23 24

Wonthaggi 192 229 50 54

Woorayl 114 103 20 25

MEMBER NUMBERS 1847 1913 494 503

NO OF CLUBS 10 10 10 10

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

WESTERN DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balmoral 14 16 11 13

Camperdown 68 67 32 33

Casterton 71 68 38 39

Cobden 90 104 41 34

Coleraine 35 35 17 13

Dartmoor 20 30 10 10

East Framlingham 61 54 26 28

Grampians 58 63 30 27

Hamilton 167 145 140 147

Heywood 69 72 31 36

Lake Bolac 50 47 9 13

Lismore 19 15 0 0

Macarthur 17 21 8 6

Merino 12 15 2 2

Mooralla 11 17 7 8

Mortlake 78 87 12 15

Parklands 64 64 21 16

Peterborough 128 128 70 68

Port Fairy 287 346 86 94

Portland 205 205 57 57

Terang 60 65 22 25

Timboon 92 85 37 39

Warrnambool 781 732 145 149

Willaura 39 39 16 16

MEMBER NUMBERS 2496 2520 868 888

NO. OF CLUBS 24 24 24 24

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

WEST GIPPSLAND DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Churchill & Monash 159 160 33 32

Drouin 348 317 67 63

Garfield 282 291 29 37

Mirboo North 95 107 26 40

Moe 115 112 36 37

Morwell 191 211 37 53

Pakenham 371 392 48 43

Trafalgar 207 282 51 0

Traralgon 349 361 75 79

Warragul 584 586 130 148

Yallourn 199 189 26 29

MEMBER NUMBERS 2900 3008 558 561

NO. OF CLUBS 11 11 11 11

GOLF VICTORIA
Membership Statistics 

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

WIMMERA DISTRICT 2018 2017 2018 2017

Apsley 26 27 24 23

Aradale 30 22 4 3

Baker 5 3 0 2

Brim 7 8 5 5

Dimboola 27 30 4 6

Drung 16 21 11 7

Edenhope 36 31 15 17

Glenorchy 20 22 3 3

Goroke 16 18 17 22

Grange 33 42 13 15

Halls Gap 20 30 6 7

Harrow 17 19 4 7

Hopetoun 38 35 8 13

Horsham 363 375 151 170

Jeparit 15 12 3 8

Kaniva 42 41 19 19

Minyip 28 26 16 18

Moor Park 21 21 0 1

Murtoa 39 42 11 12

Natimuk 26 22 5 3

Nhill 77 101 41 40

Pimpinio 7 14 0 2

Rainbow 29 33 17 18

Rupanyup 23 27 1 4

Serviceton 28 31 13 15

Sheep Hills 11 10 9 7

Stawell 133 131 33 34

Toolondo 27 33 15 16

Wallaloo 22 22 6 6

Warracknabeal 94 116 42 34

MEMBER NUMBERS 1276 1365 496 537

NO. OF CLUBS 30 30 30 30

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

TOTAL MEMBERS 2018 2017 2018 2017

Member Clubs 35403 35734 7676 7709

Affiliated & Associated 
Clubs

357 364 30 38

League Clubs 6608 7172 2100 2257

Country Clubs 40216 40618 12424 12757

Affiliated Club Programs 2215 2559 206 218

TOTAL 84799 86447 22436 22979

MEN MEN WOMEN WOMEN

TOTAL CLUBS 2018 2017 2018 2017

Member Clubs 49 49 49 49

Affiliate Clubs 2 2 2 2

VGL Clubs 96 94 72 70

Associated Clubs 1 1 1 1

Country Clubs 268 270 272 275

TOTAL 416 416 396 397
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NOTES NOTES 



Level 1 | 47A Wangara Road | Cheltenham | 3192
PO Box 2168 |  Hampton East | 3188

/golfvictoria /golfvictoria golfvictoria@golf_vic @golf_vic

P. 03 8545 6200
F. 03 9543 9307

E. info@golfvic.org.au
www.golfvic.org.au

2018 VIC OPEN WINNERS: Minjee Lee & Simon Hawkes


